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Corporate Profile
GIL

Established in Hong Kong, one of the world's most vibrant global metropolises,
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (“Guotai Junan International” or “the
Company” or “the Group” or “We") serves as a bridge to connect enterprises and
investors in China and the world. We provide channels for Chinese investors to
access international capital markets while at the same time enable international

investors to gain access to the dynamic growth of the Chinese markets.

We are a subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan"),
one of the China's largest securities houses, predominantly owned by Shanghai
State-owned Assets Operation Company Limited, Central Huijin Investment Limited
and Shenzhen Investment Holdings Company Limited. Backed by the strong
operational support, we are the designated international flagship company of Guotai

Junan, serving as the gateway for international expansion of Guotai Junan.

Today Guotai Junan International enjoys a host of tremendous growth opportunities
and is well positioned to participate in capital markets expansion in Hong Kong. We
have unparalleled access to our controlling shareholder's extensive business

networks, not just in China but globally.

Guotai Junan International is the first Mainland-owned securities brokerage house
with China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”) approval to list its shares
through initial public offering (“IPO”) on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Established in Hong Kong in 1995, we
provide our services in 5 core business areas: (i) dealing and broking in securities,
futures and leveraged foreign exchange, (ii) loans and financing activities, (iii)
corporate finance, (iv) asset management and (v) investment holdings. By means of a
sophisticated Internet platform, we are able to provide our clients with
comprehensive services on global securities, derivative and leveraged foreign
exchange trading, IPO subscriptions, margin financing, stock quotes, market news and
research reports, etc. Led by a team of dedicated professionals who have in-depth
knowledge and understanding of both China and Hong Kong capital markets, we
have established a solid reputation for providing a wide range of high quality

corporate finance solutions to our clients in Hong Kong, China and across the world.

We have proudly provided our clients with a superb range of high quality financial
services through some of the most turbulent economic periods in history. Looking
into the future, we will continue to expand and invest in our existing platforms and
customer profiles, and become a major regional financial services conglomerate. We
will commit ourselves to assist our clients in making proper judgments in different
market conditions while upholding our service commitment with integrity, client

focus, expertise and innovation.
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1995

1997

2001

2003

2007

2009

2010

2011

2012

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited was incorporated.

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited became a member of the

Stock Exchange and commenced business.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited commenced business.

Online trading platform for Hong Kong securities was launched.

Online trading platform for futures business was launched.

Our first SFC authorized fund: Guotai Junan Investment Funds — Guotai

Junan Greater China Growth Fund was launched.

Online trading platform for United States securities was launched.

CSRC approval on China B shares trading qualification obtained.

CSRC approval for Hong Kong listing obtained.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited was incorporated and listed

on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Guotai Junan FX Limited commenced leveraged foreign exchange

trading service.

Level | American depository receipt program was launched and BNY

Mellon was appointed as the depository bank.

Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Kong) Limited became a broking member

of Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange.

We launch our first RQFII fund: Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Funds

— Guotai Junan Great Dragon China Fixed Income Fund.

“NNEHE

—ANEF

[
Ay
Ay
|
_FH

Al
A
[
e

Milestones
BREM

BHRER (BE) ERAREM
XL °

BHEERES (BE) BERAF
RARBR K BLFRRER

BHRERHE (BE)ERAF
EECE SV

ERERBSFNBLT S FEH
ﬁo

&10

BMNEEEEEEERESR
¢ BFERREES-EFK
BRRTPERERESHED -

ﬁo

BETEEES T EBR
RHENM

BeTEEEEHAEREL
ﬁiO

BHRELERZRERD A
MRLEREEBEZZHAE
RAREREM o

BHRBEZIINEARAAIFRRE
HRERINER 5 RTE

BMERRF - AXEFLEE
RELZERNEGERTH/IE

BIRIT -

BHELHE (BE)BERAT
REEBMIXZANELE

B o
=

ML EERAFIES ¢
ZELREEARERS -EF
ELERTEEATKRmES -

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
2011 &3k



Financial Highlights
B REE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=f-ALFE

2011 2010 Change
(HK$’000) (HK$'000) %
—B2——F —T-%F 25
(F#ERr) (FEx) BAk
Fee and commission income ERKASKA
— dealing and broking —BEERREER 317,334 368,113 -13.8%
— corporate finance —ERE 136,619 126,412 8.1%
— asset management —BEEE 23,311 44,570 -47.7%
Interest income from loans and financing R REENSHA 214,793 101,396 111.8%
Investment holding income REEBKA 8,672 11,826 -26.7%
Revenue W as 700,729 652317 7.4%
Other income Hb A 2,425 5,777 -58.0%
Revenue and other income Wiz R E A A 703,154 658,094 6.8%
Profit for the year F N A 287,448 252,624 13.8%
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRARERA A
the Company JE 15 7 287,706 250,685 14.8%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERNREERHN
(HK cents) (Note) (&) (&) 17.5 17.5 —
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRS CBI) 9 7 28.6%
Net asset value per share (HK$) gREEEE (BL) 1.97 .87 5.3%

Note: It is based on the weight average number of ordinary shares of 1,640,000,000 (2010: i U HIREF METTE,640,000,0000% (ZF
1,428,822,000) in issue during the year. —ZF : 1,428,822,0000% ) & i fx &Y 0 #E F
BEEE -
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A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set our below:

RESULTS
£

Financial Summary
MBHME

ARERERFNTRXEREERAGEHE
O

For the year ended 3| December

BEtZA=t-BLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Zg—-% “F-TF “TENF “TT\F “TELE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
TER TET TET TET TET
Total revenue bl g 703,154 658,094 587,085 519307 975,955
Profit before tax BRELAT R 330,235 288407 271848 213,024 363,942
Profit from continuing operations FRICEXBRT 287,448 252624 244040 210428 300,320
Profit attributable to equity AREREREA
holders of the company FE1E & F 287,706 250,685 298307 126,045 385,428
2011-Revenue Mix 2011-Segment results
201 14E 4% 43 i 2011443 FR 3K 4K
Investment holding Asset management Invesénén%};%ding
Asset management [l E R 2%
R 1% 1 \ /
3% \ ,,,,,,,, T — Dealing and Broking
Corporate finance " T 77' ‘\EE‘T&@‘E
L3R -

20%

B R AR
45%

Financing

31%

Dealing and Broking N

\

Operation margin

Corporate finance - N
e 2Ly
17%
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Financing

48%
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46% 1%
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37% ===
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Financial Summary
BB EE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

BEHEE

As at 3| December

R+=ZA=+-8H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“2—-% —T-TF —TTNF ZTT)\F —TTLF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$'000
TER TET FTET TET FTET
Loans and advances to customers ERREFEHK 2,064215 1975894 860,73 368,648 815,232
Cash and bank balances BeRBITEH 661,856 44163 460284 586527 582,489
Client trust bank balances EEEHRTES 6,121,768 5874971 5679243 4175794 4,593,060
Other current assets EvRBEE 505,427 1,031,652 434,291 485326 605,046
Other non-current assets EvERBEE 648,198 651,512 360,382 43978 98,042
Total assets BERE 10,001,464 9975660 7794931 5660273 6,693,869
Total liabilities BEAE (6,769,446) (6,903311) (6,609,673) (4,625170) (5774,209)
Non-controlling interests FERE R (6,170) (6428) (4489) (2402) —
Shareholders' fund R EE 3,225,848 3065921 1,180,769 1,032,701 919,660

8 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In 2011, affected by factors such as the exacerbation of the debt crisis in Europe
and the United States, turbulence in the global market and the economic
contraction in the PRC, the Hong Kong market had experienced a drastic drop, with
the Hang Seng Index and the China Enterprises Index dipping 20% and 21.7%,
respectively. Amidst such weak market conditions, | am pleased to report to you that
Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the "Group”) achieved grateful growth in business

for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

Income from operations of the Group for this financial year was HK$703.2 million,
an increase of 6.8% over 2010. Profit before tax was HK$330.2 million, an increase
of 14.5% over 2010. Profit attributable to shareholders reached HK$287.7 million, an

increase of 14.8% over 2010.

The board of directors of the Company recommends the payment of a final
dividend of 6 Hong Kong cents per share for this financial year. Together with the
interim dividend for 2011 of 3 Hong Kong cents per share, dividends paid for the full

year of 201 | amount to a total of 9 Hong Kong cents per share.

2011 REVIEW

During the year of 201, against a backdrop of the continued exacerbation of the
European debt crisis, the monetary squeeze in the PRC and the United States and
various countries in the Eurozone being downgraded by rating agencies, the Hang
Seng Index declined after hitting its annual high at 24,468.64 points in early April,
with the minimum level hitting 16,170.35 points, the fluctuation was more than
8,000 points. Funds raised in the market for the full year decreased by 43%. Almost
70% of new issues had their prices dropping below issue prices. The number of IPO

projects shelved was the highest in the recent 10 years.

Under such an extremely unfavourable market environment, the Group was
committed to business expansion and cost control, and has achieved a satisfactory
performance. By persisting in the innovation of the financing business, the Group
recorded income growth of [11.8% in this business area. We are currently
participating in a U.S. capital market privatization project, which has significantly
enhanced our reputation in the international market. “Guotai Junan Great Dragon
China Fixed Income Fund”, a RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors scheme
("RQFII") product designed by the Group, has obtained approval from the SFC in
Hong Kong, making it the first approved RQFIl product of a securities firm.

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

In addition, since 5 March 2011, the Company has been officially included as a
financial constituent stock of the Hong Kong Hang Seng Composite Index and

became the only PRC-funded securities dealer constituent stock.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Being one of the largest securities houses in Mainland China, Guotai Junan Securities
Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”), the controlling shareholder of the Group, is at
the forefront of the industry in terms of its overall strength and the rankings of its
various operations. The Group is the only entity established by Guotai Junan
overseas and is also the major platform for Guotai Junan to implement its
internationalization strategy and develop its overseas operations. Our basic
development positioning is to rely on the support of Mainland China, base in Hong
Kong, target the global market and become a regional international financial service
company with comprehensive financial service capabilities. We will endeavor to
provide global investment services to customers in the PRC and provide overseas
customers with opportunities for participating in investment in the domestic PRC

market.

Currently, the construction of the Hong Kong offshore RMB market is in full swing.
Fast-growing RMB deposits and market demand will continually drive the innovation
of the RMB cross-border business. This undoubtedly will create an opportunity for
the rise of PRC-funded securities houses. The Group will continue to rely on the
extensive customer network and resource advantages of Guotai Junan in Mainland
China and its own operating and development experience in Hong Kong over the
years. By grasping this historical opportunity, the Group will strive to achieve an

even greater breakthrough in its overall scale and business competitive strength.

According to the Group’s development plan, we will continue to devote great
efforts to develop the financing business as well as conventional businesses such as
broking, corporate finance and asset management. For the financing business, we will
further strengthen business innovation by taking advantage of the U.S. capital market
privatization project; for the broking business, the “one-stop” electronic investment
platform will further cover the major investment markets in the world (other than
the A shares market in the PRC); for the corporate finance business, we will step up
efforts in developing overseas markets and cross-border operations to strive for
growth in both income and market share; for the asset management business, we
will capitalize on the operation of the RQFIl fund and the Equity Income Fund to
enhance our brand image. Moreover, we will also gradually establish a sales network
comprising international institutional investors to reinforce the Group's international

competitiveness.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report
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LOOKING FORWARD TO 2012

Despite a slowdown in its growth, the global economy is gradually returning to its
healthy path. The monetary policy in the PRC has also become relaxed. So long as
the European debt crisis no longer deteriorates, the year of 2012 is expected to be

a year of improvement.

The Group will continue its proactive and prudent operating strategy, step up
efforts in expanding innovative operations and promote the steady development of
the conventional businesses. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to maintain sound
cost control and risk management. We have confidence in continuing to generate

sustained, stable and attractive investment returns for our shareholders.

At last, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude again to our shareholders,
customers and staff for their full support in the development of the Group and look

forward to your continued participation and witnessing of the growth of the Group.

Dr. CHEN Geng

Chairman

Hong Kong
23 February 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the "Board”) is committed to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices within the Group and has adopted
various measures to ensure the maintenance of a high standard. For the year ended
31 December 2011, the Company has fully complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 (the
"Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The followings summarize how the Company has applied the

principles of the Code in its corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board believes that a well-balanced corporate governance structure will enable
the Company to better manage its business risks and thereby ensure the Company
is run in the best interests of its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board is
primarily responsible for setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it also has the duty
to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the Group.
Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference

and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior management.

The Board

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner. Each director of the
Company (the “Director”) has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company. The Directors are aware of their collective and individual responsibilities
to all shareholders for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed,

controlled and operated.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report
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The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include those relating to:
*  Setting the Group’s values and standards;

*  The strategic direction of the Group;

*  The objectives of the Group;

*  Overseeing the management of the Company’s relationships with stakeholders,
such as Government, customers, the community and others who have a

legitimate interest in the responsible conduct of the Group’s business;

*  Monitoring the performance of management; and

*  Ensuring that framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable

risks to be assessed and managed.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for
each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. In preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are
responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group. In addition, it is
acknowledged that the Board has the ultimate responsibility for the Group’s internal
control system and, through the Audit Committee, the Board has reviewed the

effectiveness of the system.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RRE

The Board currently comprises a total of 8 Directors:

Chairman and Non-executive Director: Dr. CHEN Geng
Executive Directors: DrYIM Fung
Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward
Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei
Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung

The Board comprises 4 executive Directors and 4 non-executive Directors. Of the 4
non-executive Directors, 3 of them are independent non-executive Directors. In
addition, one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualification. There is no relationship between members of
the Board. Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors of his independence to the Company. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent in accordance with the

Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 201 1.

Full board meets in person no less than 4 times a year. Notice of at least 7 days is
given for a regular board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to
attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers for each meeting are circulated in
full to all Directors together with the notice of meeting. Senior management
executives may, from time to time, be invited to attend the board meetings for

making presentation and/or answering any queries that may be raised by the Board.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report

ESSRRAABN\RESEMN -

EREFRTES RENE L

BTESF: 3k
FRANELE
FhEERE

IRFRE

BUFRTES - BEXEL
KL

) T b e

ESERMARHTESRALHRTES - 1
ARFERTEFET  3BRRBUFRITES
RO —RBUNRTEFRREEER G
B - EXENERMEIMBER - RIELT
AR ARRERESBUFNTESEME
REBUNARE - XRBRA - AEBULF
HOTEZRELTRANBE-_F——F =
A=t-BHLEFEHEBY -

ARRBFREITIRARN2BES
#oAREFEEHeRREN
HoBREESFEEREMTLRE - BEF
SEMENEENESE X EREZAN2
HREZT2REZEM fREETHRARL
BEERNRESTEEE  NELFEHRER
/EEEEREMELNEMER -



For the year ended 31 December 2011, four board meetings were held and the

individual attendance of each Director is set out below:

Name of Director

BEpR

Dr. CHEN Geng FREAE L
Dr.YIM Fung BE1E+
Mr. LI Guangjie FHRANEHE
Mr. LI Sang, Edward THEEE
Mr.WONG Tung Ching 2EEE
Dr. FU Tingmei BEEE+
Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DiEss kAt

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board was established on 19 June 2010. The

Committee comprises only independent non-executive Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (Chairman)
Dr. SONG Ming

Dr. FU Tingmei

The Chairman of the Committee has professional accounting qualification. The
Committee will meet regularly to review all business affairs managed by the
executive Directors in particular on connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions, if any, to review the interim and final financial statements
before their submission to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval
and to review the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management system
of the Group. The terms of reference of the Committee aligns with the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA”) and any updated thereof. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Committee has been posted on the Company's website.

meetings attended
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Committee met on 4 occasions and up
to the date of this annual report the Committee has reviewed the financial
statements, including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
which was of the opinion that such reports were prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard and requirements. The Audit Committee has also
discussed with the Group'’s independent auditors and considers the system of the
internal control of the Group to be effective and that the Group had adopted the
necessary control mechanisms to its financial, operational, statutory compliance and
risk management functions. The individual attendance of the Committee members is

set out below:

Name of Director

B

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung DRRILE
Dr. SONG Ming REE L
Dr. FU Tingmei BEEE+

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee

currently comprises 3 Directors:

Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. FU Tingmei (Chairman)

Dr. SONG Ming

Executive Director: Dr.YIM Fung

The responsibilities of the Committee include setting remuneration policy of the
Group and fixing remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the Board
as a whole in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company. No Directors can determine their own remuneration packages. The
Committee will meet at least once a year to discharge its responsibilities in
accordance with its terms of reference which has been posted on the Company’s
website. The Committee is provided with the sufficient resources to discharge its
duties. The Chairman of the Committee will report their findings and

recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Committee held | meeting to review REBE_Z——F+_A=t—HLLFE"

and discuss remuneration matters of the Group. The individual attendance of the ZEEBRTIREHE uﬁquTnHﬂT$E.E’]

Committee members is set our below: FMER - ZZBgRENEALRERHS
mE
Number of
Name of Director meetings attended Attendance rate
Exps HESRRE HE=
Dr. FU Tingme BiEEE+ /1 100%
Dr.YIM Fung Ef3c /1 100%
Dr. SONG Ming REEL /1 100%
Nomination Committee REZEE
The Nomination Committee was established on 19 June 2010. The Committee REZBEENZ FARATNBKL - %
currently comprises 3 Directors: ZESHKBEIEES
Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr. SONG Ming (Chairman) BUFHTES AEEL (FE)
Mr.TSANG Yiu Keung BRELE
Non-executive Director: Dr. CHEN Geng FHITES - BRI EL

The primary responsibilities of the Committee are, amongst other things, to make ~ ZZEEMNTIEZEHBRENEZEREZHES
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and succession RESETIELRE -

planning for the Directors.

BRETEBEZERERAR 17
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Committee held | meeting to review
and discuss appointment and succession planning of Directors. The individual

attendance of the Committee members is set our below:

Name of Director

EEpng

Dr. SONG Ming REEL
Dr. CHEN Geng BREAE L
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung LRkt

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD AND THE RESPECTIVE BOARD
COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The Company Secretary will assist the Chairman of the Board and the respective
committees in setting agenda for meetings, and each Director of the Company is
given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted in the agenda. Where
any Director is considered to be having a conflict of interest in any transactions, the
Director concerned will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting.
Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees are
recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those present at the
meetings for comments before submission to the chairman of the meetings for

approval.
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In addition, in order to safeguard the interest of individual director, the Company has

arranged directors and officers insurance for its Directors and subsidiaries’ directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

There is a clear segregation of roles between the Chairman and the chief executive
officer (“CEQ”). This segregation ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the CEO's responsibility to manage the
Company and its subsidiaries’ business. The duties of the Chairman and the CEO are
carried out respectively by Dr CHEN Geng and Dr.YIM Fung. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship between the Chairman and
the CEO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. Such term is subject to his re-appointment by
the Company at general meeting upon retirement by rotation pursuant to the

Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model
Code. All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 201 |.The Directors
had no securities transactions of the Company for the year ended 31 December

2011,
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COMPLIANCE MANUAL

To ensure the Company operates according to the highest standards of ethical
conduct and professional competence, all staff including the Directors are required
to strictly follow the Company's Compliance Manual which places them under
specific obligations as to the ethics and principles by which the Company’s business
is conducted. With reference to the applicable regulatory guidelines and other
industry best practices, the Compliance Manual sets out ethical standards and values
on the topics such as staff dealing in securities, anti-money laundering and personal

benefits.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays a major role in
monitoring the corporate governance of the Group and providing objective
assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and
operated by the management. The head of the internal audit team directly reports
to the Board and the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based
approach to evaluate risk level on control environment, the internal audit team plans
internal audit schedules annually in consultation with, but independent of, the
management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval.
On a yearly basis, the head of the internal audit team will present a report and
express an opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal control environment of
the Group. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and processes of the
Group's operating business. Moreover, ad hoc reviews will be performed on specific

areas of concern identified by the Audit Committee and the management.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
During the year ended 31 December 2011, Ernst & Young was appointed as the
external auditors of the Group. The remuneration paid/payable to the external

auditor is set out as follows:

Services rendered

Frig AR 7%
Audit services ZE R
Non-audit services IEZ B AR

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company encourages two-way communications with both its
institutional and private investors. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities is provided in its interim report and this annual report, which are sent to
shareholders of the Company. The annual general meeting provides a valuable forum
for direct communication between the Board and the Company's shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees together with the external auditor are present to
answer shareholders’ questions. The annual general meeting circulars are distributed
to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. Separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each separate issue and voting of
which are taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. Any results of the poll are
published on the Company's website. All corporate communication with
shareholders will be posted on the Company's website for shareholders’

information.
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RESULT OVERVIEW

Amid the uncertain global economy, we are pleased to report to our shareholders
that the Group achieved a promising growth in the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company amounting to HK$287.7 million, an increase of 14.8% as compared
to 2010 (2010: HK$250.7 million). During the year, the Group’s revenue totalled
HK$700.7 million, an increase of 7.4% as compared to last year (2010: HK$652.3
million). Profit before taxation was HK$330.2 million, an increase of 14.5% over
2010 (2010: HK$288.4 million).

Such encouraging results were founded on the solid performance of the Group's
loans and financing activities which recorded a growth of | |1.8% in interest income
when compared with prior year. In addition, the Group continued to improve its
operation efficiency which resulted in reducing its cost to income ratio from 56.2%

in 2010 to 53.0% in 201 1.

The Board of the Company has recommended a payment of final dividend of
HK$0.06 per share for the year. As a result of the proposed final dividend together
with the interim dividend for 201 | of HK$0.03 per share, dividends paid for 201 |
amount to a total of HK$0.09 per share.

MARKET REVIEW

2011 was a year of turmoil for the world economy, started with the massive
earthquake and tsunami in Japan which hit severely on Japan's economy, followed by
the United States having difficulties in passing the debt ceiling bill in June which
caused the country lost its top-tier AAA credit rating from Standard & Poor's. The
deteriorating of country deficits in Greece, Italy, Spain and Portugal increased the
crisis on the collapse of European Union financial system. All these incidences
caused severe impact on the world economy resulting in high volatility in financial
markets. Fragile investor confidence and tight liquidity in the market also added fuel

to the poor market performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

China was supposed to play an important role in the global economic recovery.
However, because of the high inflation, the Chinese government has to introduce
various measures in tightening money supply to avoid economic overheat. The
Required Reserve Ratio for banks was increased from 18.5% in December 2010 to
21.5% in June and subsequently reduced to 21% in December 201 1. The inflation
issue in China seems to be under control now as the year-on-year Consumer Price
Index growth rate dropped to 4.1% in December 201 | compared with the peak of
6.5% in July 2011. On the other hand, due to rapid expansion in lending in the past
two years, non-performing loans are expected to increase substantially as a result of
economic slowdown and tight government policies. As such, the Shanghai
Composite Index closed at 2,199 (2010: 2,808) as at 31 December 2011, with a

drop of 21.7% as compared to last year.

In Hong Kong, the real Gross Domestic Product was down to 3.0% in December
2011 (2010: 6.8%). Although the unemployment rate came down, inflation rate went
up to 5.7% (2010: 2.4%). With the support of the Chinese government, Hong Kong
continued to strengthen its position as the offshore RMB clearing centre. In August
2011, the Chinese Vice Premier, Mr. Li Ke Qiang, announced a number of policies in
supporting Hong Kong as the offshore RMB clearing centre, including the
introduction of RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors scheme (“RQFII"), the
promotion of Foreign Direct Investments (“FDI"), the mainland China traded
Exchange-traded Fund ("ETF") on Hong Kong Hang Seng Indices, etc. Chinese
enterprises were also encouraged to raise capital through issuing RMB bonds or
listing in Hong Kong. As at the end of December 201 |, the balance of RMB deposits
in Hong Kong achieved a total of RMB588.5 billion, an increase of 86.9% as
compared to last year (2010: RMB 314.9 billion).

Although there were a number of encouraging policies relating to financial services
industry in supporting Hong Kong as an offshore RMB clearing centre, Hong Kong
financial market was so vulnerable and unavoidably affected by the global market
sentiments. During the year of 2011, while the overall Hong Kong market turnover
was increased by |.48%, the turnover on equity products was actually decreased by
3.3%, the turnover on derivative warrants was decreased by 2.3%, with only the

turnover on Callable Bull Bear Contracts increased by 29%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB am B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW RO
The Group's business can be classified into dealing and broking, corporate finance, AEBNEBIEAIKNEERLEL  DER
asset management, loans and financing and investment holding. The allocation of the B EERR EFLRENRKRERR - X

revenue from these businesses is listed in the following table. BREEBRNEENDEINTE
2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
TER % TR %
Fee and commission income ERRAE KA
- dealing and broking - BERRRER 317,334 453 368,113 56.4
- corporate finance —hERE 136,619 19.5 126,412 19.4
- asset management - BEEER 23,311 33 44,570 6.8
Interest income from ERREENS KA
loans and financing 214,793 30.7 101,396 15.6
Investment holding income REZEBRA 8,672 1.2 11,826 1.8
Total revenue Gy 700,729 100 652,317 100
. Income from dealing and broking o EERBERXBUA
Amongst our business activities, dealing and broking is the most significant EBEMNEBT  BEERELREBAR
business of the Group and it generated over 45.3% of the total revenue. Due SEXBSAEENES  HEBEE
to the poor market conditions and keen competition in the market, the FHBIR45.3% - HANTRES RIZEIR
revenue generated from dealing and broking business was HK$317.3 million BHE OHBE_T-——F+t-HA=1—
(2010: HK$368.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 201 |, representing REEE EXBEERRLEHNEK
a decrease of 13.8% when compared to prior year. A breakdown of the wAMNTIFEET(ZT—ZF 1 368.1
income has been set out below: BEAT)  BEFRD13.8% BHEK
ABDHHR T :
2011 2010
—F--F —E-FF
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
TERT % TET %
Securities &7 234,523 73.9 290,849 79.0
Futures ME 53,485 16.9 56,749 15.4
Leverage foreign exchange TEIRINE 856 0.2 | —
Handling income FEE 28,470 9.0 20,514 5.6
Total revenue s 317,334 100 368,113 100

24 GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the launch of online trading platform for our customers since 2001, our
online trading platform currently supports 9 international securities markets,
including Hong Kong, United States, Japan, London, Canada, Singapore, Taiwan,
Shanghai B shares and Shenzhen B shares, |8 global futures markets and
leveraged foreign exchange trading. In 2011, 83% of our brokerage business
was executed through Internet (2010: 85%). 84% of the revenue was
generated from individual clients while 169% was from institutional clients. With
our strong foundation in China, 89% of our clients are from China. To provide a
“one-stop” service, our online trading platform can also support IPO
subscription, margin loan application, investment fund subscription, cash
withdrawal, currency exchange and provision of market news and research
reports. The mobile trading platforms through iPhone and Android systems

have been launched for our customers this year.

Facing keen competition from a number of securities houses and banks, we
have engaged in a number of promotional schemes to secure our securities
dealing and broking business, including provision of one month free internet
trades for the new accounts. Although there were over 8,000 new brokerage
accounts this year, the revenue from securities business decreased by 19.4% to
HK$234.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$290.8

million).

The currencies and commodity prices experienced high volatility in 201 1.The
volatility of the global market in 2011 encouraged futures dealing and broking
activities. Although the number of futures contracts executed increased by
['1.4%, the commission income slightly decreased by 5.8% to HK$53.5 million
in 2011 (2010: HK$56.7 million) over 90% of which was attributable to the

international markets.

EEER W E DT

BME_TZ—FEREFPHELM/LR
5Fa BEXSHTABAXRIEER
BHrmg - BEEE EE BX -
FMEXR K A& EEBRK
AYIBR - 18{H 2 IRHIE M5 RAERINME
BE WZT——F  83%(=ZT—%
F 8% REFEBABEMMBET -
B4%WHELEEMBEATFS * 16%K B H#
BEP - BEFMETENBEER
HFIBI%NNEFPREFE - RBIRME[—I4
N RS BAHNBLRSFamASE
ETERRAREERE AFREBES
FoOREEEARB HEeRM BE¥H
EURRETHEERARRS ° &M
R E AN RE P H#E L A E BiPhonek
AndroidZ#FERHNRBRHES ©

HHRELZHBFTRBINER
FoORMELT -RIEEFEZER
FMBESEERELEYR  BERFE
FRRE-BAREBEHERS - AKX
FEHEAS000EFELE, BEHES
T——FF+-ZA=+-HLEFE %5
BHEEBOKERD T19.4%£234.58
EET(ZT—TF :290.8HEBT) °

EMLEREER-_E——FKREHK
o T ——FREMBEKBDTHRR
ETHEEERKLEY - BRAHES
KRR EBEMT11.4% - BASEKA
BT ——FHE5.8%E53.568/8 T
(ZZ—ZF :56.7EBEL) HP BB
0% KB EIFR % °

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
2011 &3k

25



26

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB am B AT

The leveraged foreign exchange trading service has successfully rolled out this
year by offering 7 major currency contracts and up to 2| cross currency
contracts. To promote our business, a number of investor conferences had
been organised to educate our clients. For the year ended 3| December 2011,
the net income from leverage foreign exchange dealing and broking was
approximately HK$856,000.

As a result of increasing in corporate action activities and stock borrowing and
lending activities in 201 |, the handling income increased by 38.8% to HK$28.5
million (2010: HK$20.5 million).

Income from corporate finance

The momentum for listing of Chinese enterprises slowed down in 201 |. There
were |01 new listings on the Stock Exchange including those transferred their
listing from GEM Board to the Main Board (2010: 113 new listings). For the
year ended 3| December 2011, we have completed the sponsorship of the
listing of three companies. We have been also engaged as compliance adviser
for 43 newly listed companies and financial advisor for 10 projects. Due to the
effort of our staff, the income from consultancy and financial advisory fee
income increased by 44.4% to HK$37.0 million for the year ended 3l
December 2011 (2010: HK$25.6 million).

Although total funds raised in the Stock Exchange including IPOs decreased by
43.1% to HK$488.3 billion (2010: HK$858.7 billion), we made good progress
during the year. With extensive sales network and customer resources, we
have been appointed as the global coordinator, bookrunner or lead manager
for 7 IPOs. We have also acted as placing agents for 23 fund raising exercises.
Given the poor market sentiment during the year, our revenue from placing
and underwriting activities only decreased by 1.2% to HK$99.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 201 | (2010: HK$100.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income from asset management

We derived our fee income primarily from management fee and performance
fee, which are linked to the asset under management (“AUM") and the returns
of funds, respectively. As the average AUM decreased by 14.9% to HK$3,498.4
million in 2011 (2010: HK$4,112.4 million), the management fee income
decreased by 12.4% to HK$19.5 million for the year ended 31 December 201 |
(2010: HK$22.3 million). The performance fee income was only HK$3.8 million
in 2011 compared with HK$22.3 million in prior vear, reflecting the weak

performance of the funds under management.

At the end of December 201 |, we were granted approval for the launching of
a RQFII investment product namely Guotai Junan Great Dragon RMB Fund
(the “Fund”). The initial RQFII quota is RMB900 million. The Fund is expected
to be launched in March 2012.

Interest income from loans and financing activities
The interest income from our loans and financing business increased by
['11.8% to HK$214.8 million in 2011 (2010: HK$101.4 million). A summary is

set out below.
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maturity investment 5,820 2.7 1,908 1.9
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Since the listing on the Stock Exchange in 2010, we have invested significant
resources in expanding our loans and financing activities. Such efforts were
justified by the significant increase of the average margin loan balance by
108.3% to 2,139.9 million in 2011 (2010: HK$1,027.5 million). The interest
income from margin loans increased by |15.8% to HK$152.2 million (2010:
HK$70.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 201 1. The average interest
rate charged to our margin clients was also increased to reflect the current
risk level. At the same time, to maintain our good risk management, we
continued to adopt an aggressive while stable operation strategy for our

margin loan financing business.

Owing to unsatisfactory performance of the IPO financing activity, our interest
income from IPO loans decreased by 86.8% to HK$650,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$4.9 million). On the other hand, the
interest income from banks and others was increased by 143.8% to HK$52.6

million (2010: HK$2 1.6 million), reflecting the tight liquidity in the market.

We invested into a 3-year senior note issued by a private company in
September 2010 and this held-to-maturity investment contributed interest
income of HK$5.8 million (2010: HK$ 1.9 million) for the year ended 3l
December 201 1.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

*  Investment holding income

To diversify revenue stream and to secure sponsorship and underwriting deal
opportunities, our Group started to engage in direct investment activities on
unlisted companies. For the year ended 31 December 201 |, we have invested
in two unlisted companies and the total investment amount was HK$65.5
million (2010: nil). These financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss contributed net gain on revaluation of HK$33.3 million (2010: nil) and
interest income of HK$1.7 million (2010: nil) respectively for the year ended
31 December 201 1. However, the Group incurred loss of HK$31.2 million
(2010: gain of HK$7.6 million) from the financial assets held for trading. During
2011, the Group received dividend income from listed financial assets held for
trading amounting to HK$4.9 million (2010: HK$4.2 million). As a whole, the
net income from investment holding was HK$8.7 million for the year ended 3|
December 2011 (2010: HKS$11.8 million).

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
During the vear, the total assets increased by 0.3% to HK$10,001.5 million as at 31
December 2011 (2010: HK$9,975.7 million).

The Group’s total liabilities as at 31 December 2011 decreased by 1.9% to
HK$6,769.4 million (31 December 2010: HK$6,903.3 million).

As the Group recorded a net profit of HK$287.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2011, the Group's net assets increased by HK$159.7 million or 5.2% to
HK$3,232.0 million (2010: HK$3,072.3 million) as at 31 December 201 |,
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 3| December 2011, the net current assets of the Group increased by 7.1% to
HK$2,592.9 million (31 December 2010: HK$2,421.9 million). The Group’s current
ratio increased to .38 times as at 3| December 2011 (31 December 2010: |.35

times).

The Group had net cash inflow of HK$220.2 million (2010: outflow of HK$18.7
million) for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the Group's bank balances
amounted to HK$661.9 million as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$441.6 million).
As at 3| December 2011, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$200
million through bilateral banking facilities with various banks (31 December 2010:
nil). The gearing ratio (defined as bank borrowings to equity attributable to equity
owners of the Company) was 0.06 as at 3|1 December 2011 (2010: nil). The Group
also had sufficient banking facilities from authorized financial institutions in Hong
Kong. We believe our operating cash flow remains adequate to finance our recurrent
working capital requirement as well as any investment opportunities that may arise

in the near future.

The Group monitors its capital structure in order to ensure the compliance of the
capital requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(Cap.571IN) for its licensed subsidiaries and to support the development of new
business. On 15 June 2011, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, one of our
wholly owned subsidiaries, has increased its share capital to HK$2 billion (31
December 2010: HK$600 million). All licensed corporations within the Group
complied with their respective liquid capital requirements during the year and up to

the date of this annual report.

Other than the information disclosed above, there were no other equity or debt
instruments issued by the Company during the year and up to the date of this

annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLAN

As we mentioned earlier, 2012 will be a challenging year for us to expand our
business. The European debt issues remain unresolved, the global economy recovery
remains uncertain, and the marco-economic control measures in China are

expected to continue.

Following the significant increase in loans and financing activities in 2011 and the
tight liquidity in the market, we expect the demand for margin financing and secured
lending business remains strong in 2012. The Group is committed to invest
resources to boost our loans and financing activities, partly from our existing capital

and partly from bank borrowings.

The Stock Exchange has become the preferred offshore listing venue for Chinese
enterprises. At the same time, with confidence in the efficiency and transparency of
Hong Kong's capital markets, international investors are able to invest in Chinese
enterprises through Hong Kong's capital markets and even PRC’s capital markets by
means of RQFIl and FDI. As a result, we will continue to pursue corporate financial
advisory and fund raising opportunities from our Chinese enterprises for listing in
Hong Kong. The Group is also committed in developing debt issuance business for
our corporate clients, whether they are in Hong Kong dollars or RMB. In addition,
we will look into direct investment opportunities to generate investment income

and to secure corporate finance deals.

To further grow our brokerage business, we will continue to leverage on client base
of our ultimate holding company Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited and
explore those clients with overseas investment demand. To provide our clients to
invest globally, we will continue strengthening our Internet trading platform with

access to global markets around the world.

As China increases its speed in the process of internationalisation of RMB, we
believe there will be more business opportunities. Our first RQFIl product - Guotai
Junan Great Dragon RMB Fund is expected to be launched in March 2012. We are
looking forward to seeing more opportunities in the development of RMB

denominated investment products in the near future.
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MATERIAL ACQUSITIONS, DISPOSALS AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the year ended 31 December 201 1. As at 31 December

2011, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2010 and

2011 respectively.

GUARANTEE AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations to capture placing and IPO
activities. The Board has resolved to ensure that the Group has adequate working
capital to meet such obligations. As at 31 December 2011, the underwriting

obligations were approximately HK$388.3 million (2010: HK$674.2 million).

As at 31 December 201 |, the Company had provided guarantees in favour of an
authorised financial institution in respect of banking facilities of a wholly owned
subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$530 million (2010: nil). In addition, the
Company provided guarantees up to approximately HK$155.5 million (2010:
approximately HK$77.8 million) in favor of financial institutions in respect of the
trading limit granted to a wholly owned subsidiary principally engaged in the

provision of futures dealing services.

The Group had no other material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2010 and

201 1.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT AND CAPITAL COMMITMENT
There was no operating lease commitment as at 3| December 2011 (2010:
HK$115,000). The capital commitments were approximately HK$570,000 (2010:
HK$6,750,000) as at 31 December 201 1.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, we have 195 employees in total (excluding our account
executives). Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees by
reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. Salaries are reviewed on
annual basis and discretionary bonus is paid on annual basis with reference to the
Group's performance and individual performance. Share options have been granted
to the directors and employees in recognition and acknowledgement of their
contribution made or to be made to the Group. Other benefits offered by the

Group include mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group adopted stringent risk management policies and monitoring systems to
control risk exposure associated with credit, liquidity, market, foreign exchange and

[T system in all its major operations.

Credit Risk

Loans and financing activities:

The Board delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to monitor the credit risk
of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee include, inter alia, the Chief
Executive Officer; the Responsible Officers and the Financial Controller. The Credit
Committee has appointed a group of authorized persons to take charge in
approving credit limit and margin limit of each client. The Credit and Risk
Management Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades
of margin clients exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be
made good according to the deficiency report. The deficiency report will be daily
monitored by the Credit and Risk Management Department. Failure to meet margin

calls may result in the liquidation of the client’s positions.
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The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of stocks acceptable as
margin collateral and the margin-lending ratio. The list of approved margin collateral

stocks will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee when necessary.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element of
credit risk. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing detailed credit
analysis of potential loan investment, and dedicated professionals are assigned to
oversee and monitor the performance of the loan investment. These key investment

decisions are also subject to approval by the Board.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new shares
are normally settled within one week from the draw-down date. Forced liquidation
action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall within specific

period of tolerance after IPO allotment result announced.

For debt securities, external credit rating such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody's
rating or their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management Department
for managing of the credit risk exposures as supplemented by the Group’s own

assessment through the use of internal ratings tools.

For the Group’s bank balances which we beneficially own, they are deposited in
respectable large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are
held in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorized financial institutions in

Hong Kong.

Dealing and broking

Accounts receivable from clients represents receivables from clients arising from
dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment settlement term
of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows a credit up to the settlement dates of the
respective securities transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3 days). All application
for the credit limit must be reviewed by Credit Manager and approved by any
member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit would be granted to the
new clients. Credit and Risk Management Department determines whether forced
liquidation action is to be taken against clients with overdue balances on case-by-

case basis. The overdue report is regularly reviewed by the Credit Committee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange trading. No transaction is allowed to be executed if the
current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit placed
and the aggregate of the required margin deposit of each futures and leveraged
foreign exchange contract is timely monitored by the Credit and Risk Management
Department. Margin call will be executed by the staff if there is a deficit in the
margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the client’s position will be executed if the

customer fails to meet margin calls.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (the "HKMA") and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission (the
“SFC").

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing-houses and other
assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are considered to have

minimal credit risk.

Asset management and corporate finance
Accounts receivable arising from asset management, corporate finance and advisory
services are trade counterparties with sound credit rating and/or reputation. The

credit risk with these trade counterparties are considered to be manageable.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of individual
outstanding amount at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on individually assessed
accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at balance sheet date
on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The
assessment normally encompasses collateral held and the anticipated receipts for
that individual account. Generally, impairment allowances will be provided when
clients failed to meet margin call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient

to cover their outstanding loan balances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB am B AT

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operating units are subject to various statutory liquidity requirements
as prescribed by the regulators. The Group has put in place monitoring system to
ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital to fund it business commitments and
to comply with the relevant Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(Cap.57IN). As a safeguard, the Group has maintained stand-by banking facilities to

meet any contingency in its operations.

Even in periods of high market volatility, the Board believes that the Group's working

capital is adequate to meet its financial obligations.

Market Risk
The asset quality of our margin client’s collateral will deteriorate when the market
comes down drastically. The Group's exposure to underwriting commitments will

also be affected at times of volatile market.

The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the market risk arising in the business. Stress tests will be performed when

necessary.

The Group also has listed equity investments and unlisted investments that are
subject to the market risk. The Group minimizes such risk exposure by performing
detailed due diligence analysis of potential investments, and dedicated professionals
are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of the investment. These key

investment decisions are also subject to approval by the Board.

(d)  Foreign Exchange Risk
The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong
dollars and U.S. dollars and the level of foreign currency exposure is relatively
minimal compared to its total asset and liabilities. Foreign exchange risk is
managed and monitored by our Financial Controller. For the leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the position has been
adopted, hence, we consider that our foreign exchange risk exposure is

minimal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operational Risk

Systems are installed to monitor availability and performance of various IT
systems and a team will act and report to the senior management in
accordance with the established procedures in the event of disruption,
instability and other situations which may warrant to trigger the contingency

procedure to protect interest of clients.

The Group maintains and updates the operation manuals of its major
operations on an on-going basis when regulatory or industry changes occur.
We have also put in place competent compliance and internal audit functions
with their respective aims at detecting control points risks and recommending
policy changes as well as carrying out checks on statutory compliance and the

internal rules and regulations.

EEER W E DT

(e) EEREE

BAMBERNERMR R EEXREIR
ERER  TA - XEERERERF
EREGTE  FTRERUVEBEER
BFOEMERL TASREEEE
B ERREETFOME -

FEERBLERERTXRESHERE
ERMENEIBXBNERTM - R
HRREREXRNARARABELR
B MEEEERAZHERR KR
BETENEE  URBETEETAR
B PO EB A8 B B A5 91 1 4 A B

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
2011 &3k

37



38

Biographies of the Directors
EEEE

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

CHEN Geng (BREk) |, aged 43, is the chairman of our Company. Dr. Chen is
responsible for the overall strategic development of the Group. Dr. Chen is the
president and vice chairman of Guotai Junan and a vice chairman of the Securities
Association of China. Dr. Chen has over 21 years' experience in securities industry
and participated in the establishment of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and was the
general manager of the listing division from 1993 to 1996. After joining | & A
Securities Co., Ltd.,, Dr. Chen was appointed as the president assistant and the
general manager of the investment banking department in 1996 and as the vice
president and a director in 1998. Dr. Chen was appointed as the vice president of
Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited in 1999 and as the president and vice
chairman in 2004. Dr. Chen holds a doctorate in Political Economics from the
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (I &EBUEKRZE) and is a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (P B 5TAIHE) .

Executive Directors

YIM Fung (FI&) | aged 48, is the vice chairman and an executive director and the
chief executive officer of our Group. Dr.Yim joined Guotai Junan in 1993 and joined
our Group in 2000 and is responsible for the overall business management of our
Group. Dr.Yim has over 20 years' experience in the securities industry. Dr.Yim is a
senior economist and holds a doctorate in Economics from the Graduate School of
the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bl & RIEFLH 7 EPL) and a
bachelor degree in Environmental Engineering from the Tsinghua University (& %
AEB)  DrYim is also a director of Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan

Financial Holdings Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the Company.

LI Guangjie (ZEH) | aged 43, is an executive director and the head of the sales
house team of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in November 2001 and is
responsible for the supervision and management of the Group’s sales team. He has
over 20 years' experience in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. Li
started his career at Shenzhen Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants (R III & 5 &
FTEISEFT) as the deputy head of appraisal department. Mr. Li was the finance
director from 2001 to 2008. Mr. Li holds a bachelor degree in Economics from the
Shenzhen University (FRIIKE) and a master degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics (R EF4&EKE) | He is also an
economist and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(FEIGFMEEANHE) and a member of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents
Association (FREIFEMRBEEIHE) .
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LI Sang Edward (ZF4) |, aged 48, is an executive director and the head of legal and
compliance of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in May 2007 and is responsible
for the legal, compliance and company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr. Li has
over |9 years' of experience in legal and financial services. He holds a master degree
of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong, a master
degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnics University and a
bachelor degree in Law from the University of London. Mr. Li admitted as a solicitor

in Hong Kong and England and Wales in 1995.

WONG Tung Ching (£4 %) |, aged 40, is an executive director and the head of
the corporate finance and equity capital markets divisions of our Group. Mr. Wong
joined our Group in October 2000 and is responsible for the overall business and
marketing matters of corporate finance and equity capital markets business of our
Group. Mr. Wong obtained a master degree in Business Administration from the

University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln)

in 2001 and a higher diploma in International Trading from the Shenzhen University

OFRIIKE) in 1992,

Independent Non-executive Directors
FU Tingmei (B&EX)

Company. Mr. Fu was appointed a Director on |9 June 2010. Mr. Fu has extensive

, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director of the

experiences in investment, finance, law and business management. Between 1992
and 2003, he conducted many corporate finance transactions in several investment
banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine
Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director and subsequently a managing
director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital Limited. Mr. Fu is currently engaged in
private investment business. He is currently also an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392) and CPMC
Holdings Limited (stock code: 906), both listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu
graduated from the University of London with a master's degree and a doctorate

degree in Law in 1989 and 1993, respectively.
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Biographies of the Directors
EEEE

SONG Ming (&)

has over |8 years' experience in research of bank regulation and management,

, aged 50, is an independent non-executive director. Dr. Song

financial market, derivatives and macroeconomics. Between 1991 and 1997, Dr. Song
was the Associate Professor (tenured) and Assistant Professor at Department of
Economics, Cleveland State University. Dr. Song is the director of Centre for China
Financial Research (CCFR) at the University of Hong Kong since 2001 and the
Professor and Associate Professor (tenured) at Faculty of Business and Economics of
the University of Hong Kong since 1997. Dr. Song holds a doctorate degree in
Economics from Ohio State University, a master degree of Science in Mathematics
from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (EREIFEAZ) and a
bachelor degree of Science in Mathematics from Zhejiang University (/I AZ) .
Dr. Song was awarded as the top 500 economists around the world according to
2002 Thomson's ranking. Dr. Song also serves on the editorial boards of several
financial research journals such as China Financial Research and Financial Economics
Journal. Dr. Song is appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
United Laboratories International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3933) since May
2007.

TSANG Yiu Keung (E183%)

Mr. Tsang is a professional accountant and a fellow member of The Hong Kong

, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director.

Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr.
Tsang was with KPMG for more than 27 years, where he was a senior banking
partner until he retired from the firm in 2003. Mr. Tsang is an independent non-
executive director and the chairman of the audit committee of L. K. Technology
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 558), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong and CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsang holds a higher diploma in

Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 201 1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking,
loans and financing activities, corporate finance, asset management and investment

holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 58 of this annual report.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.03 per share and proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.06 per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the company on 26 April 2012. The dividend
will be payable on or about || May 2012.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Detailed segment information in respect of the Group's revenue and segment
results are shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to
103.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December 2011 is set out on

pages 7 and 8 of this annual report.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note || to the financial statements which is set out on page |||

of this annual report.
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PARTICULAR OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in the note 22 to the financial

statements which is set out on pages 127 and 128 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements which is set out on pages 31 to 133 of

this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the section of “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”
and note 29 in the financial statements on pages 137 and 138 of this annual report.
As at 3| December 2011, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.32), amounted to HK$100,742,000 of which
HK$98,400,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to

HK$50,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 3| December 2011, the revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue.
The Group is a provider of financial services. In the opinion of the Board, it is

therefore of no value to disclose details of the Group's suppliers.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issuer’s share capital) had any

beneficial interest in the Group's 5 largest customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31 December 201 | other
than as an agent for the trustee of Guotai Junan Share Award Scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:-

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. CHEN Geng

Executive Directors
Dr.YIM Fung

Mr. LI Guangjie

Mr. LI Sang, Edward

Mr. WONG Tung Ching

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei

Dr. SONG Ming

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director has a service contract with the Company which is for a duration that
may exceed 3 years or which requires the Company to, in order to terminate such
contract, give a notice period of more than | year or pay compensation or make

other payments equivalent to more than | year's emolument.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements which is set out on pages 141 to 144 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
At each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or; if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third, shall retire from office and be eligible for re-selection. Accordingly, Dr. CHEN
Geng, Dr. YIM Fung and Dr. FU Tingmei shall retire by rotation. They will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Dr. FU
Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Mr TSANG Yiu Keung and as at the date of this annual
report, still considers them to be independent. Generally, the term of office for each
independent non-executive Director is for a period of 3 years, and all of the 3
independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the Company's Articles and Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 201 I.
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Report of the Directors

BEEERE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST IN THE SHARES EENFETHAERALTRSREMME
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY BErENROREBERONES
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors or their “E-—F+ZA=1—H EEHHEHE

associates in the share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within /\EAﬁ’&ﬂﬁﬁZﬁﬁ HEE (ERREFRBE
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") which & (1585 REE D) EXVED) AR AH -
have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 HABREZEHF L BEKRHIEXVIETIREH H
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be EMERAR KRB  dREEFRBER
kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company 1283521641 F B B R I pritt = 52 -

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the BB R AES ETHAR ([ LETHEAN) Mtk
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) 10 ERETARTE NG AL E] LB AT

were as follows: K
Interests in respect of the Company RAEDARNES
Number of
underlying Approximate
shares held percentage of the
under equity Company’s total
derivatives issued share
Number of (LN capital
Long/short shares held fTETAT HARARE BT
Name of director positions P P Total R &
EENE R/ %R RO #E RHHNEE R A3 4 B BHABED®
YIM Fung Long — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.37%
]2 =9}
WONG Tung Ching Long — 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.18%
25 =3}
LI Guangjie Long — 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.09%
FHA 9
LI Sang, Edward Long — 1,500,000 1,500,000 0.09%
4t =9}
FU Tingmei Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
fBiEx KB
SONG Ming Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
PN 59
TSANG Yiu Keung Long — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
T 1@ =9}
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Interests in respect of an associated corporation REE BN ESR
Name of Percentage of
Long/short associated Nature of Number of issued shares
Name of director positions corporations interest shares HEBTREG
Ens R/KR AR B BEEME R E BOk
YIM Fung (Note) Long Guotai Junan Fund Interest of a 2,010,000 20.1%
A (&) kB Management Limited controlled corporation

BHRELELEE
ARDA

Note:  Dr.YIM Fung,Vice Chairman, executive director and chief executive officer, holds 92%

equity interests in Best New Management Limited, is deemed to have an interest in
the 20.1% equity interest held by Best New Management Limited in Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2011, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARED-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEME

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes
including a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") and a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible participants of the schemes
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive directors, and

other employees of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010 which shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to grant options to the eligible participants in recognition and
acknowledgement of their contributions made or to be made to the Group. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the Board has the discretion to grant share options to
employees and directors of any members of the Group to subscribe for the shares
of the Company.
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On 10 June 2011, 40,000,000 share options have been granted to the Directors and

employees with the exercise price of HK$4.30 per share. Among the share options

granted above, a total of 13,500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of

the Company. The closing price of the Company’s shares prior to the date of the

grant of the share options was HK$3.25. The option period of the share options is

from 10 June 2011 to 9 June 2021. One-third of the share options granted will be

vested in respect of their underlying shares on the first, second and third

anniversaries of the date of grant respectively. No share options was exercised,

cancelled or lapse for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year

ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:
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Share price Share price
Options immediately immediately
Options held granted  Options held at Exercise price preceding preceding
at | January during 31 December Date of  of share options the grant the exercise
2011 the year 2011 Grant (HK$) date date
R-B--% R-B--%
Name of -A-BKE FRARE TZA=t-H BRETEE BERE  REOEAH
participants SRENE MERE NBERE KAENERE  R4AH (Bx)  BHANRE AINRE
Directors Bz
YIM Fung =] — 6,000,000 6,000,000 [0/6/201 | 430 3.25 N/A 1
WONG Tung Ching I45 — 3,000,000 3,000,000 10/6/201 | 430 3.25 N/A 1
LI Guangjie 3 H — 1,500,000 1,500,000 [0/6/201 | 430 325 N/A
LI Sang, Edward £ — 1,500,000 1,500,000 [0/6/201 | 430 3.25 N/A 1
Fu Tingmei BEx — 500,000 500000 10/602011 430 325 NIA f
SONG Ming R — 500,000 500,000 10/6/201 | 430 325 N/A &
TSANG Yiu Keung BBk — 500000 500000 10/612011 430 325 N/A 1
Continuous BE
contract employees A0k
In aggregate @t — 26,500,000 26,500,000 10/6/201 | 430 325 N/A
— 40,000,000 40,000,000 10/6/201 | 430 325 N/A

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.
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Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 201 1, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme under which
the shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including Directors) of any members of the Group (the "Selected
Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme Rules and the Trust Deed of the
Share Award Scheme. The Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption
date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date, i.e,, 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (being
164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee in any |2-month period up to and including the
date of award shall not in aggregate exceed % of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the adoption date (being 16,400,000 shares).

When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include
service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of the Company at
the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded
Shares to that employee at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested

Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

No Awarded Shares was granted to the Directors of the Company for the year

ended 31 December 201 1.

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are disclosed in note 28 to the financial

statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as the Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the
year ended 3| December 2011, the Company or any of its subsidiaries has not
signed any agreements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or
any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or

had exercised any such rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (not being a Director of our
Company) have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each of the Company
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Approximate percentage of
issued share capital

of the Company

Number of shares EEAREBRITRE
RO E BRBSL
Long Short Long Short
Name of shareholders positions positions positions positions
BREH RA RE RE RE
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited BRELZERERADA 1,230,000,000 Nil £& 75% Nil £
Guotai Junan Financial BRELZSRER
Holdings Limited (Note) BRAR (&) 1,230,000,000 Nil £& 75% Nil £
Guotai Junan Securities BRELBHRH
Co, Ltd (Note) BRAA (FFE) 1,230,000,000 Nil £& 75% Nil £&
Note:  Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Guotai Junan Financial Holdings M BERERERBRAFAEREZSRIE

Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co.,
Ltd. Accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
Co., Ltd are deemed to have the same interest in the shares of the Company as

Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as the continuing connected transactions disclosed below, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of business of the Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during

the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

(a) Cooperation Agreement for China B shares dealing and broking
On 17 June 2010, a co-operation agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited (“Guotai Junan”)
whereby Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited would maintain a China
B share trading account with Guotai Junan and place orders on behalf of its
customers to Guotai Junan. Guotai Junan would then execute the orders using
its China B shares trading platform. The total amounts of commissions paid by
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited under the cooperation
agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2012 should not exceed
HK$6.0 million, HK$6.6 million and HK$7.26 million respectively. The total
commission paid to Guotai Junan for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$4,232,000 which is also set out in Note 35(a)(i) to the financial statements

on page |50 of this annual report.
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(b)

Consultancy Service Agreement

On 17 June 2010, a service agreement was entered between Guotai Junan
(Hong Kong) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Guotai
Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co,, Limited (which was subsequently
amended by a supplemental agreement dated |9 April 201 ) whereby Guotai
Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited would provide
consultancy services relating to project management and economic
information as well as marketing and planning to Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited. The total amount of consultancy fee paid to Guotai Junan Consultancy
Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited under the service agreement for the three
years ending 3| December 2012 should not exceed HK$9.6 million, HK$ 12
million and HK$15 million respectively. The total consultancy fee paid to Guotai
Junan Consultancy Services (Shenzhen) Co., Limited for the year ended 31
December 201 | was HK$12,000,000 which is also set out in Note 35(a)(ii) to

the financial statements on page 150 of this annual report.
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(©)

Investment Management Agreements

On 17 June 2010, a supplemental investment management agreement was
entered into between Guotai Junan KS Select Equity Fund (“KS Fund”) and
Guotai Junan Fund Management Limited, a supplemental margin trading
agreement was entered into between the KS Fund and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited, a supplemental investment management agreement was
entered into between Guotai Junan Funds SPC (for the account of Guotai
Junan Harvest China Fund Segregated Portfolio) (“SPC Fund”) and Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and a supplemental margin trading agreement was
entered into between SPC Fund and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong)
Limited. Under the said supplemental agreements, Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited will provide securities trading services and margin
facilities to both the KS Fund and SPC Fund. Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited will act as the investment manager for the SPC Fund and Guotai Junan
Fund Management Limited will act as the investment manager of KS Fund. The
total amounts of aggregated fee paid by the KS Fund and SPC Fund for the
three years ending 31 December 2012 should not exceed HK$65 million,
HK$67.2 million and HK$69.84 million respectively. The total fees paid to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 was HK$9,861,000 which are
also set out in Note 35(a)(iii) — (vi) to the financial statements on pages |50

and |51 of this annual report.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report

(c)

REEEHZ
RZE-FTFXA+LEH  Guota
Junan KS Select Equity Fund([KS
Fund]) BBl R ELZESER AR AT
UREEERAGZ  KS Fund2B%RE
ZEH(BE) BRAFAFIREER
53 » Guotai Junan Funds SPC
(R & Guotai Junan Harvest China Fund
Segregated Portfolio ([SPC Fund]) &
EREXREEEE (2M) BRAAG]
VREBEEM A KSPC Fundi B %=
ERES (BB ) BROFFTIRER
REFMRGE - BELABRBE
RELRES (BB ) BRAABREKS
Fund&% SPC Fundf2 & % X 5 R R AR
FoLh BRELEEETE (M)
BRABEEMESPC Fundfy iR B 32 -
MEZELZESEBAR A ABEIKS
Fundf iR EL8E - BE-T——F+=
A=+—BIE=MEFE - KS Fund & SPC
FundZIM& £ERBED AT GHA
BEEEATT - 67288 TTR6I.84EE
BT BHE_T——F+=ZA=+—H
HFERNTARSERNBERAF9,861,000%8
U B e BRI ER AR F 515041151
B B % ® &M 5E35(0) (i) E (vi) ©



(d)

Investment Advisory Agreement and Client Agreement

On 'l August 2010, an advisory agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited, the
investment manager of a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors (QDII)
collective investment plan (the “QDII Scheme”), namely BIZRE XA EE L&
& EEEEF & (Guotai Junan Jun Fu Xiang Jiang Collective Investment Plan),
which was amended by a supplemental agreement dated 27 September 201 1.
Under the advisory agreement, Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited was
appointed as an investment advisor of the QDII Scheme and be entitled to

advisory fee.

On |5 September 2010, a client agreement was entered between Guotai
Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited, the investment manager of the QDI Scheme, which was amended by
a supplemental agreement on 27 September 2011. Under the client
agreement, Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited agreed to provide
securities brokerage services to the QDIlI Scheme and be entitled to

commission income.

On 25 September 2010, the relevant parties entered into agreements under
which all rights and obligations of Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited as
the investment manager of the QDII Scheme have been transferred to /&
REREHRBEEEAR DT (Shanghai Guotai Junan Securities Assets
Management Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities

Company Limited.

The total amounts of aggregated fees paid by the QDIl Scheme to Guotai
Junan Assets (Asia) Limited and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
under the agreements for the two years ended 3| December 2012 should not
exceed HK$4 million and HK$9.4 million respectively. The total fees paid by the
QDII Scheme for the year ended 31 December 201 | was HK$ 1,205,000 which
are also set out in Note 35(a)(x) to the financial statements on page 151 of

this annual report.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered into:-

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to/from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

In accordance with paragraph [4A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the above mentioned
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagement 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Review of Historical Financial Information” (“HKSAE 3000") and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“PN740") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000
and with reference to PN740 that the transactions:-

(i) have been approved by the Board of the Company;
(i) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant CAPs disclosed in the listing prospectus
of the Company dated 25 June 2010 and announcement dated 27
September 201 1.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES
As at 31 December 2011, none of the Board members of the Company and their
associates had any interests in an entity whose business competes or is likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital

was held by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 21 of this report.

AUDITORS

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as auditor of the Company and
Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants, were appointed as auditor in the
Company's annual general meeting. The appointment took effect from 28 April 201 1.
There has been no other changes of auditors in the past three years. The financial
statements have been audited by Ernst & Young who will retire and being eligible
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company to be held on 19 April 2012.

By order of the Board
CHEN Geng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 February 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B E AR ER S

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

Ernst & Young
22/F, CITIC Tower
| Tim Mei Avenue

R EEH
EERRANEE R
HIERE2212

Central, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 58 to 168, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 201, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 41 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 February 2012

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEZHWER

Year ended 31 December 201 |

HE-T-—F+-A=-ALFE

Notes 2011 2010
P & —2--F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Revenue Y& 5 700,729 652,317
Other income Hpth Y A 6 2,425 5,777
Revenue and other income Yo gs B B A A 703,154 658,094
Staff costs BIKA 7 (161,916) (148,114)
Commission to account executives EFPXEMA: (44,241) (55516)
Other commission expenses HinBeRx (41,170) (36,306)
Performance fee expenses REBRY (3,602) (10,661)
Depreciation e (24,562) (19,208)
Impairment of loans and advances to customers B & EF B FURNE |7 (139) —
Impairment of accounts receivable FE W R IE R (B 18(d) (r8r) (10,006)
Other operating expenses Hth £ & 5 2 (94,862) (85,734)
Operating profit & A 332,481 292,549
Finance costs BE KA 7 (2,246) (4,142)
Profit before tax BR % B A 7 330,235 288,407
Income tax expense PSR X 8 (42,787) (35,783)
Profit for the year FREF 287,448 252,624
Other comprehensive income FREM
for the year, net of tax 2EHE - MKRHIE = —
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEKZARE 287,448 252,624
Attributable to: ATBIBEM
Owners of the parent BARHEA A 287,706 250,685
Non-controlling interests FERE S (258) 1,939
287,448 252,624
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary BAREBRBRR
equity holders of the parent EiEERER
~ Basic and diluted =18 3 10 17.5 cents 17.5 cents

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 9 to

the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BN &R
As at 31 December 201 |

R-E——%+-A=1+—-H

Notes 2011 2010
N
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRB Il 446,893 450,401
Investment properties REWME 12 111,903 15,055
Intangible assets B EE I3 2,823 2823
Other assets Hith & & 14 2,960 2,870
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE E 15 5,891 2,530
Held-to-maturity investments REIHKRE 16 77,728 77,833
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 648,198 651,512
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances to customers ERREFDHK |7 2,064,215 1,975,894
Accounts receivable JiE W 38 18 336,366 935,583
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BENRE Ko REMEKKIE 19 18,035 11,970
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss LAV EFT AEZHNEHEE 20 150,716 84,099
Tax recoverable AT ORI 310 —
Client trust bank balances EPERITAR 21 6,121,768 5,874,971
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEED 21 661,856 441,631
Total current assets REEELAE 9,353,266 9,324,148
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JET 3R 23 (6,471,235) (6,778,940)
Other payables and accrued liabilities H fth &~ 5B R FEFT 5K 1B 24 (77,788) (106,161)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEHRITER 25 (200,000) —
Tax payable JE 418 (11,344) (17,154)
Total current liabilities RBAEAE (6,760,367) (6,902,255)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,592,899 2,421,893
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HREERABER 3,241,097 3,073,405
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE 5 (9,079) (1,056)
Net assets EEFRE 3,232,018 3,072,349
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEMBRREK (&

As at 31 December 201 |

R=F——%+-A=1-8

Notes 2011 2010
B —g--%  _F%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Equity i
Share capital EEEN 26 164,000 164,000
Share premium It @ B 26(v) 2,771,707 2,771,707
Other reserve Hith 29(a) (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Share-based compensation reserve PARRD RER R EREE 12,805 —
Shares held under the share award scheme BB D EB S EN RN (9,384) —
Proposed final dividend N ¢ 9 98,116 82,000
Retained profits RE & 1,425,064 1,284,674
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARHE AELER 3,225,848 3,065,921
Non-controlling interests R ER 6,170 6,428
Total equity EHEHE 3,232,018 3,072,349
Dr.Yim Fung Mr. Li Sang, Edward
e i 18 & TERE
Director Director
EF 4
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Statement of Financial Position

B # AR R 2R
As at 31 December 201 |

R-E——%+-A=1+—-H

Notes 2011 2010
fis S
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in a subsidiary RETBARIRE 22 1,280,765 1,268,440
Total non-current assets FARBEELE 1,280,765 1,268,440
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ERKIE e REMEKZKE 19 625 386
Due from a subsidiary & Y B B8 2~ R 5N 22 1,756,397 1,750,135
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEED 21 104 10]
Total current assets RBEEAR 1,757,126 1,750,622
Current liabilities RBAE
Accrued liabilities et FRIE 24 (1,005) (1,220)
Total current liabilities RBAEAE (1,005) (1,220)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 1,756,121 1,749,402
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBAR
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS REERE 3,036,886 3017,842
Equity i
Share capital R 26 164,000 164,000
Share premium B0 s (8 26 2,768,723 2,768,723
Share-based compensation reserve AR RERRERE 12,805 —
Shares held under the share award scheme BER G EEEEENRD (9,384) —
Proposed final dividend R R H RS 9 98,116 82,000
Retained profits RE R T 29(b) 2,626 3,119
Total equity BB 3,036,886 3,017,842
Dr.Yim Fung Mr. Li Sang, Edward
MigE+ THEE
Director Director
£ 4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEER

Year ended 31 December 201 |

HE-F——F+-A=1—-ALFE
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BRAEEAREER
Share- Shares
based  held under
compen-  the share
sation award Non-
reserve scheme controlling
Share Share Oter KR  BERH  Proposed  Retained interests Total
capital premium reserve BER KB dividend profits Total IR equity
BRAE RDEE EeEE  BERE SE0RD RERE  RERN 85t Bn  BREE
HK$000 HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O000 ~ HK$O000  HK$O00  HKFO00  HK$O0O  HK$O000  HK$O000
TEn  TEr  TExr TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TER  TER  TER
Balance at | fanuary 2010 HZF-TF
“A-AMEE - — 31980 - - — 1148789 1180769 4489 1185258
Total comprehensive EnzE
income for the year Gt - - — - - — 10685 250685 1939 25264
Allotment of shares pursuant  RIZHR {355
to the share swap R
(Note 26(i)) (R & 26ii)) — 1268440 (1,268440) — — — — — — —
Capitalisation for RETHRN
issuance of new shares AR
(Note 26(i) (W&Eati) 123000 (123.000) — — — — — — — —
Share issuance pursuant to - RIEZIREER
the Global Offering OESHI
(Note 26(w)) (F&E26lv) 41000 1722000 — — — — — 1,763,000 — 1763000
Share issuance costs EENRAET
incurred (Note 26(1)) BR (MEoen) — (95733) — — — — — () - (5T))
Iterim dividend G
declared (Note 9) (Rt 9) - - - - — —  (32800)  (32800) — (3800
Proposed finl RRAERE
dividend (Note 9) (R 9) - — - - — 8000 (82000) — — —
Balance at 3| December 2010 WN=F—Z#
and | January 2011 T-A=1-H
k%%
—A-BRESR 164000 2771707 (1236460) — — 82000 1284674 306592 6428 3072349

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 201 |

BE-F——F+-A+-ALFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

BRAARRARGRSR
Share- Shares
based  held under
compen- the share
sation award Non-
reserve scheme controlling
Share Share Other WRH  BERHG  Proposed  Retained interests Total
capital premium reserve RER  REHE  dvidend profits Total FER equity
Bx  RORE RtR%  BERR BENRE  REKRE  REEN Lh B ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TERL térn TRR fEn TER TEn TER TEn  TER  TEn
Total comprehensie  FAZME
income for the year hsngs = = = = = — 287706 287,706 (258) 287,448
Fair value of share-based B EE R
payment in respect REN R
of share options BERARN
granted (Note 27) NTE
(& 27) - - -80S - - - s - s
Purchase of shares s o
held under the REHEEE
share award scheme mEAHRD
(Note 28) (FizE 28) - - - - (9.384) - - (9,384) — (9,384)
Final diidend XHRABRE
paid (Note 9) (B3t 9) = = = = = (82,000) = (82,000) — (82,000)
Interim dividend ERPHRE
declared (Note 9) (FzE 9) - - - - - —  (49200)  (49.200) - (49.200)
Proposed final RERDRE
dividend (Note 9) (3t 9) - - - - - %lle (%16 — — —
Balance at 3| RZ2—%
December 20! | +-R
=t+-H
H &8 164000 2,771,707  (1,236,460) 12,805 (9384) 98116 1425064 3225848 6170 3232018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN vl —1
GEBRETRERXR
Year ended 31 December 201 |

HE-T——F+-F=+—AIFE

Notes 2011 2010
P & —2——F —F-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Net cash flows from/(used in) mEEBME,/ (FTA)

operating activities Reng$dH 33 178,738 (845,260)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  RBEXEBE I (17,929) (114,972)
Purchases of investment properties BEREME 12 = (115,055)
Dividend paid to shareholders AR R % R R 9 (131,200) (32,800)
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BERZIHRE 16 — (77,833)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGDMAREREFHE (149,129) (340,660)
Cash flows from financing activities MEZHRERE
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER = (500,000)
New bank loans FIERITERN 25 200,000 —
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses 1T FTEFUIE » MBRFAX — 1,667,267
Purchase of shares held under BRER G REABEEMHANRGD

the share award scheme (9,384) —
Net cash flows from financing activities REFEBHRENEFH 190,616 [,167,267
Net increase/(decrease) RBeRAEEEY

in cash and cash equivalents #m/ (Bd) B8 220,225 (18,653)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FHIER & RREEEY 441,631 460,284
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREERBEESEEY 661,856 441,631
Analysis of balances of cash REeRBREEEY

and cash equivalents a3 ki
Cash and bank balances BRe RifTHEA 319,798 296,812
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity E4EREEIA 2 =18A

of less than three months when acquired HAREHEHER 342,058 144,819

661,856 441,631

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2011 Annual Report



2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 32) and its shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of the Company is
27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central,
Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in dealing and broking, loans and financing

activities, corporate finance, asset management and investment holdings.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding company are
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited,

respectively.

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 23 February 2012.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 32). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values

are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

2.1

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011
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Notes to Financial Statements
B A& R R B A
31 December 201 |

—e-——F+=A=t-A

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31
December 201 1. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group

transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the non-

controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or

retained profits, as appropriate.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first

time for the current year's financial statements.

Standard/

interpretation

ER 2R

Notes to Financial Statements

Content
E

B IS SRR M EE

i

22 EHBREBRKE
FEBECHAFENRBRR ERM
ATHET RBET BBV BRELER -

Applicable for

financial years
beginning on/ after
BRRTHBEHAR 2%
B 1A B B R S

HKAS 32 Amendment

BB ERERF 32 RMEFT

HK (IFRIC) - Int 19
R (ERMBRERE
ZEg)-2EE19%
HKFRS | Amendment
BRMBREERE

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments
e (ARVBERERELZES)

—REBE14FMEL

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

—E-TEEEYBHE
Al o 2 A

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial 5{

effect on these financial statements.

1SREERT

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Classification of Rights Issues
B SRR EEH BT
TRIA: 2J-#Re 5 HE

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Nm TARGEMAR

Amendment to HKFRS | First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

BREMBREEUNBVRNEF BARRBEYH RS
BRI -BARRNE BRI EREERET T RE
HEEBRBE

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

BEBRVERERRRES) —REF 145
BRI REEEHENENMNFK

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2010

—ZFERARHN—F

NEBMBRELENNIELT

| February 2010
—ZT5-f—H

[ July 2010

~E-FFLA-A

[ July 2010
—E-TELA-E

| January 201 |

%A~

| January 2011
—F-——%-A-H

RBEIERMBREENL

ﬁﬁ#&%?iéﬁﬁﬁ%%” °
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Notes to Financial Statements

B A5 SRR M R

31 December 2011

—$——F+=A=+-A
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2.3 CEMERKRERNERYBRE
REPORTING STANDARDS £
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have AEBRANZENBRERPERUT
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. ERMERRERSN I REETEE

MBREER -

Applicable for

financial years

Standard/ beginning on/ after
interpretation Content BRARTH R 2%
R/ RE ngE FRNMBFE
HKFRS | Amendments Amendments to HKFRS | First-time Adoption of Hong Kong [ July 2011
BEVEREENE 15FREET Financial Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation —E——%+A—H

HKFRS 7 Amendments
BAEVBMELERNSE 7HAEET

HKFRS 9
BAMBREEAER
HKFRS 10
BRMBHRERAEI0%
HKFRS 11
BAMBREEUE 1R
HKFRS 12
BAMBREEAE12H
HKFRS 13

BAMBREENF13%
HKAS | Amendments
BREGHERE 1RNER]

and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
BERMBREERFVRNOET EARAEEHN GRS
BRI -BEFMBRREARAEMNSREE RS
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: [ July 2011
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets —E——%tA—H
BREMBREERETROER]
TRIA BE-BRTREE

Financial Instruments | January 2015
EHIA “F-H%-A-H
Consolidated Financial Statements | January 2013
HREMBHK —T-=%-H—H
Joint Arrangements | January 2013
Kz —T-=Z¥—-A—H
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities | January 2013
REMERNERKE “T-=Z%-H—H
Fair Value Measurement | January 2013
AFEFTE —T-=%-H—H
Presentation of Financial Statements — Presentation [ July 2012

of Items of Other Comprehensive Income “ZE——#F+A—H

2IMHHRE - 2R EEREER
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Standard/

interpretation

ER 2R

Notes to Financial Statements

Content
E

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011
~F—F{ZA=1-A

23 CEMESRERNEEMBRE
28 (&)

Applicable for

financial years
beginning on/ after
BRRTHBEHAR 2%
B 1A B B R S

HKAS 12 Amendments

BEREERFE 12 5R0EF

HKAS 19 (201 1)
BRI ERF19%
(Z2——%)

HKAS 27 (201 1)

BRI ERE27H
(Z2——%)

HKAS 28 (201 1)

BEGHERIFE28%
(Z2——%)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Bk (ERMBRERE
ZEg) - Z2EF20%

Amendments to HKAS |2 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets

BER G ERE125RMER
B3t —EXEHE  MEHREEE

Employee Benefits

EE &M

Separate Financial Statements

BUHHBHX

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

REZRRARAEERANKE

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

1t 3 Rl A e R B R BR A A

| January 2012
—F--%-A—H

| January 2013
“F-=%-A—-H

| January 2013

“F-=%-A—-H
| January 2013
“T-=%-A—-H

| January 2013
—F-=Zf-A-H
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Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3R B 5

31 December 2011

—e-——F+=A=t-A

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those changes that are expected to significantly

affect the Group is as follows:
. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase | of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the
entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification and measurement

of financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (*OCI"). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCl would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have been

designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects to

adopt HKFRS 9 from | January 2015.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
and HKFRS 12 Disclosure Of Interests In Other Entities

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities
including special purpose entities or structured entities. It includes a new
definition of control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management
of the Group to exercise significant judgement to determine which
entities are controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces
the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also

includes the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

2.3 EEMERRERNEEMBERS
2R (&)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
and HKFRS 12 Disclosure Of Interests In Other Entities (continued)

HKFRS |1 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HK(SIC)-Int |3
Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It
describes the accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and
joint ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures

using proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities that are previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, HKAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also

introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 as a
result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS I'l and HKFRS 12.The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS |1, HKFRS 12, and the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 28 (201 1) from | January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
. HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS |3 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in which the
Group is required to use fair value, but provides guidance on how fair
value should be applied where its use is already required or permitted
under other HKFRSs.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls
more than half of its voting power or issued share capital or controls the
composition of its board of directors; or over which the Company has a
contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with respect to that entity's

financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to
the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s investments in

subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the

function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment

loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Shorter of remaining
Leasehold land lease term or useful

under finance lease life of the building

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation (refer to the accounting policy for “Property, plant

and equipment and depreciation”) and any impairment losses.

An item of investment property and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each

financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing club membership and eligibility rights to trade on
or through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) and
The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life

assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

B IS SRR M EE

i

24 TEEHHRBE (B)

BVEE

B EENRERRRANGE - BFY
BEANRERTAERFHAERT
ERRY - ARTUERFHNELE
ERNAEREEFHNEE  TFE2
CETSBRENEENRLRRE -
BERTEAERFHNENEENEHET
HRBHLTAZRIREFEBR —

e
IN°

BERTERRBNEVEERREEME
BERRNAEBRBEEBARIME
@@ﬂﬂ%x%h&%%%éi%%ﬁ
RORHEBEETEENSERE
ﬂ*ﬁ@%ﬁ&ﬁi@iﬁﬂ@%&i
ETRENN RZBYEEERE
He BEERARANENEENAE
AEHesFny  NETBREER
REFERTIDAES - WTER - B
EMERTERRPEZAREAER
FHMELFENSE  DRAKERE
N o

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
2011 &3k

77



78

Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3R B 5

31 December 2011

—e-——F+=A=t-A

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge

over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity
investments. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial

assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances, client trust bank
balances, loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable, other

receivables and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification

as follows:

*  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held

for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification

as follows: (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include
any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if

the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the near
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets. The reclassification
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does
not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss using the fair value option at designation as these instruments cannot

be reclassified after initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification

as follows: (continued)

. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in profit or loss. The loss

arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss.

¢ Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance income in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a

group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

¢ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in

arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for

measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the

recovery is credited to other expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts and other payables, and bank
borrowings. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at

initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of

loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any
deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments where there is no
active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option

pricing models.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the share
award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying

amount and the consideration is recognised in equity.

Client trust bank balances

The Group has classified the clients' monies as cash held on behalf of
customers under the current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position and recognised a corresponding accounts payable to respective clients

on grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and

assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and other regulators. They are intended to be held

on a long-term basis and stated at cost less impairment losses.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in porfit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

*  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

()

commission income from securities and futures dealing and broking, on

the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged;

income from leveraged foreign exchange transactions on an accrual basis;

commission income from underwriting/placing in securities are earned on
execution of each significant act based on the terms of underlying

agreements and mandates;

management, consultancy, investment advisory fees and handling income,

when the services have been rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,

when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has

been established;

performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation day
of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a positive
performance for the relevant performance period, taking into
consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds

and managed accounts;

information services income, when the services have been rendered; and

net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
those held for trading include realised gains/ losses which are recognised
on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/losses which are recognised in

the period in which they arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(9

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Annual leave

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they are
accrued to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end

of the reporting period.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on an
approved formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to
the Group after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has

created a constructive obligation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award scheme for
the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff
members. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments

(“equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The cost
of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in the “Share-based compensation reserve” under
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the

beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided

that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(d)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating to the

Company's own shares held under the Company's share award scheme, are

classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section

of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the

shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved

by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the

Company’'s memorandum and articles of association grant the directors the

authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are

recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending business,
under which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. Cash collateral
advanced or received is recorded as an asset or a liability. Fees received or
paid in connection with securities borrowing and lending is recorded as

handling income or handling charge, respectively.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or

translation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of

a parent of the Group;
or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of

a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is

an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income and
other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held
to maturity. This classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to
maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling an
insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to reclassify the
entire class as available for sale. The investments would therefore be measured

at fair value not amortised cost.
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3.

Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property,
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as

an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses at 31 December 2011 was HK$5.9 million (2010: HK$2.5 million). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2011 was HK$30.9 million
(2010: HK$26.3 million). Further details are contained in note |5 to the

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable

The Group reviews its loans and advances to customers and accounts
receivable to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in the Group. Management
uses estimates based on historical loss experience when scheduling its future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will affect
the carrying value of loans and receivables and thus impairment charge in the

period in which such estimate is changed.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
that are not traded in an active market is determined by using external
valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable
recent arm's length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques commonly used by other market
participants. Changes in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect

the reported fair value of these financial assets.
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Group’s senior executive management. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the Group's
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that offers services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of the other

operating segments. Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@) the dealing and broking segment engages in the provision of securities,

futures and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking to customers;

(b) the loans and financing activities segment engages in the provision of
margin financing to margin customers, initial public offering (“IPO") loans,

other loan financing to customers and bank deposits;

(c) the corporate finance segment engages in the provision of advisory

services, placing and underwriting services;

(d) the asset management segment engages in asset management, including

fund management and the provision of investment advisory services;
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Notes to Financial Statements

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

i

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. PBHE (B)

(e) the investment holding segment represents interest income dividend le) BENBIELTREREREMIE
income and gains or losses from listed equity investments and other EHREHMBBA - REBAR
unlisted investments; and REER R

(f)  the “others” segment mainly represents rental income, the provision of (f) [EM]oHEZEBESWA - =H#
information channel services and others. BARERSG R EAM

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the prices EoHsHNRS (WE) I2RAE=

charged to third parties and there was no change in the basis during the years AWM ERMET  FEEEREZE

ended 31 December 2010 and 201 1. —E-RERCSF—HFTA=1-—
HIEFETEEZE -
The segment information provided to the management for the reportable REE-ZT-ZFR-F——F1+=A
segments for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 is as follows: ST-BLEEE MERERTERS
RGN D BERDT -
Year ended 31 December 201 | BE-Z——F+-A=+-BLFE
Dealing  Loans and
and financing
broking activities  Corporate Asset  Investment
EER B3R finance  management holding Others ~ Eliminations Total
BEX% RERD LXEE HEEE  REXR At st it
HK§'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tér TR TER  TER TRz FEx  TEr  TEn

Segment revenue and other income: APUBREBYA -

Sales to external customers HETHPER 317,334 214793 136,619 B3I 8,672 2425 — 703,154

Inter-segment sales AP EEE - - - - - - - -

Total @t 37334 24793 136,619 8311 8,672 2425 — 703,154

Segment results AxE 102,783 158,592 55,875 4313 8,672 - — 33023

Income tax expense R (42,787

Profit for the year ERET 287,448

Other segment information: R AHEH

Depreciation nE 10,253 1528 5,564 1217 — - — 24,562

Finance costs BERL 18 218 - - - - - 2246
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31 December 2011
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. DEHE (B)
Year ended 3| December 2010 BE_Z-Z2F+t-A=t-RLEE
Dealing  Loans and
and financing
broking activities  Corporate Asset  Investment
EER  EXR  finance management  holding  Others Eliminations Total
BEs%  BERD (MERE  AEER  REXK Efh s @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt  TEr  TEr  TEnr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEx
Segment revenue and other income: S HUEREMKA :
Sales to external customers BETIDER 813 10139% 126412 M50 11826 5777 —  6580%
Inter-segment sales AP EEE — — 2,984 — - — (2.984) —
Total @it 368,113 10139 12939 44570 1,826 5777 (2984) 658,094
Segment results PB%EE 137,068 60522 69,180 9811 11826 — — 288407
Incorne tax expense MERAR (35,783)
Profit for the year ERET 252624
Other segment information: Bt AHER
Depreciation & 9,544 3581 443 651 — — — 19,208
Finance costs BEARE 3 4109 - - — - — 4142

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2011 Annual Report



4.

Notes to Financial Statements
P E
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—F-—F+=fA=1-A
SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4. DEHE (&)
Geographical information i 13 & R
(a)  Revenue from external customers (a) SIKEF Yz
2011 2010
—E-—F —_T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Hong Kong B 611,807 566,841
Other countries H B K 91,347 91,253
703,154 658,094
The revenue information above is based on the location of the markets/ EXRBEERDET S HE /&
customers. FPimalo
(b)  Non-current assets (b) FRBEE
All non-current assets (excludes financial instruments and deferred tax AEEMBEERDEE (TRESH

assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

TARERERBREE) GURNERE
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31 December 2011
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5. REVENUE

An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, is as follows:

I

Wzt (MAREEEXE) AW

2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Dealing and broking: BERERLER:
— Commission on securities - BHEEREREBNAS
dealing and broking 234,523 290,849
— Commission on futures - HEEBERLLEEBORAE
dealing and broking 53,485 56,749
— Handling income on —BERBLEBNFEREUA
dealing and broking 28,470 20,514
— Net income on leveraged foreign —BRINEEE LR
exchange dealing and broking EBHRAFEER 856
Loans and financing activities: ERLBMERY
— Interest income from margin loans —HFREZFEWA 152,204 70,529
— Interest income from term loans —EHEFRFEWA 3,484 2,437
— Interest income from IPO loans —BRARBEERNBRA 650 4,937
~ Interest income from banks and others — —#R1T R E M F| B UL A 52,635 21,585
— Interest income from —REIMRENEWRA
held-to-maturity investments 5,820 1,908
Corporate Finance: PERE :
— Placing, underwriting and —-BE BHEIBEHENAE
sub-underwriting commission 99,589 100,767
— Consultancy and financial —BERRBEDAERA
advisory fee income 37,030 25,645
Asset management: BEBRE -
— Management fee income —EEBRA 19,503 22,265
— Performance fee income —RABRA 3,808 22,305
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31 December 2011

ZE—#1-fA=1-H
REVENUE (continued) 5. W (&)
2011 2010
—g2-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Investment holding: REXEK
— Net (loss)/gain on financial -BEEESREEDN
assets held for trading (B18) =% (31,168) 7,624
— Net gain on financial assets designated —EERATEFABREH
at fair value through profit or loss TREENDFR 33,266 —
— Dividend income from listed financial —-BFEEELMeREENREKA
assets held for trading 4,885 4,202
— Interest income from unlisted —EERAFESABRE
financial assets designated at fair value FETERMEENNBHRA
through profit or loss 1,689 —
700,729 652,317
OTHER INCOME 6. HtlA
2011 2010
—g2-—-F —T-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Gross rental income from BREMERSWARE
investment properties 920 3,753
Information services income B RBEHA 1,389 1718
Others Hith 16 306
2,425 5777
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31 December 2011

—E——F1-f=+-H
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEEHBRATEBA

AN U TEBEEL

& TR, GG

2011 2010
—B——-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Other operating expenses include: Hi g e BfF
Auditors’ remuneration ZEED BN 1,851 1,730
Bank charges RITEA 910 1,797
Business trips ZIkE 5718 3,202
Entertainment REEHE 4,635 4,650
Foreign exchange difference, net SNEFERR (2,183) (1,705)
Handling charges FES 5,502 4771
Information services expense BARBHX 11,988 10,927
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BEREEHENEE
plant and equipment 27 82
Marketing, advertising and MR BEEREERX
promotion expenses 7,685 5409
Minimum lease payments THEBFLLEHENRERS
under land and buildings 1,291 8,190
Professional and consultancy fee BXRHAE 16,982 12,129
Repair and maintenance BRIERBEOERGHEE)
(including system maintenance) 9,750 8,566
Direct operating expenses arising from FRRRHESBMANKREN X
investment property that generated BEMNERLERS
rental income during the year 443 —
Staff costs (including directors’ BINKNBEEEMEMT32))
remuneration (Note 32)):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e EARRE 147,210 146,501
Share-based compensation AR 17 7 BT 5 18 A = (B = 27)
expense (Note 27) 12,805 —
Pension scheme contributions RIRE IR 1,901 1,613
161,916 148,114
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
B A ¥R R B A
31 December 201 |

—e——Ft=A=t+-8

7. BRBADEF (8)

2011 2010
—g--5  -T-3%
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Finance costs: BB
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly ARRFANEEEER
repayable within five years MIRITERREX 2,156 4,084
Others Hity 90 58
2,246 4,142
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FEHAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) BENGHRIRFNERTBELNME
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. ERBEM LT E16.5% (ZF—TF -
16.5%) #f# -
2011 2010
—B-—-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Current — Hong Kong BVER— B ENEH
— Charge for the year —FRNRX 38,190 38,258
— Overprovision in prior years - BTFEBERE (65) (1,001)
Deferred (Note 15) BE (MisE15) 4,662 (1,474)
Total tax charge for the year FARIER X B 42,787 35,783
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using the

statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

8.

FRERmX (&)

TS 61 ) 325 2 L 6t B 0 B B A i
Y 5 LI S B4 S B ot A O L R B

IHRWT

2011 2010
—B——-F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Profit before tax BR Bt A R 330,235 288,407

Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEME 165% (ZF—ZFF : 165%)
at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) STEHNIE 54,489 47,587
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERRE (65) (1,001)
Income not subject to tax FRRTUA (24,436) (10,507)
Expenses not deductible for tax B LR AR X 12,873 1963

Utilisation of previously BRBETEERNTIEER

unrecognised tax losses (1,412) (5,046)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEEE 1,198 7
Temporary difference not recognised Hi AR RN EH 140 2,780
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BEREEERNEAENTERX 42,787 35,783
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B #% ¥R aR Y =
31 December 201 |
—F-—F+=fA=1-A
DIVIDENDS B’ E
2011 2010
—E-EF —_T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Interim — HK$0.03 (2010: HK$0.02) T - BRE B 0.038T
per ordinary share (ZZ—ZF :0.02%7T) 49,200 32,800
Proposed final — HK$0.06 (2010: HK$0.05) ##/&k K Hi — Bk L i@A% 0.06 BT
per ordinary share (ZZ2—ZF:00587) 98,400 82,000
Less: Dividend for shares held under B REBEARLR AR R
the Company's share award scheme BERiEST )¢ (284)
98,116 82,000
147,316 114,800

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the

Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

FARRRBREBEARABRRRERE
BRRBERE L4LE - TR -
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 3|
December 2011 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent of HK$287,706,000 (2010: HK$250,685,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,640,000,000 in
issue during the year (2010: 1,428,822,000)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2011 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options outstanding did not give rise to any

dilution effect on the basic earnings per share amounts presented.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had no potential

dilutive ordinary shares in issue.
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10. BREF
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(b)

BRELXEF

BE-_T——&+-A=1+—HLHF
B BREREFDREFANETH
AR EREKREEMGER
287,706,000 L (=T —F 4 :
250,685,000/ 7T.) [ 1,640,000,0008%
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I'l. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t+-8

1. 9% BER®KHE

Office equipment  Furniture and Land and Leasehold
BAZE fixtures buildings  improvements  Motor vehicles Total
#EF  HHREE  tHRET HENEEE RE @zt
Group HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
r&E TER TER TET TER TER T
For the year ended HEZZ-ZE12R
31 December 2010 ZT-HIEEE
Opening net carrying amount ~ EAIREF(E 8579 260 344,335 1,123 40 354719
Additions HE 6341 — 104091 3917 623 114972
Disposal e — — — (82) - (82)
Depreciation provided ERHE
during the year (7622) (254) (9,182) (1642) (508) (19,08)
Closing net carrying amount EREEFE 7298 6 439,044 3316 537 450401
As at 31 December 2010 RZE-FET-A=1-H
Cost A £719 1,187 448,776 3917 2,004 499,603
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (36421) (1181 (9532) (601) (1.467) (49,202
Net carrying amount RETE 798 6 439,244 3316 537 450401
For the year ended HE_Z-——51_R
31 December 201 ST-HIEER
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 7298 6 439,244 3316 537 450,401
Additions AE 5,750 1411 - 10,768 - 17,929
Disposal & (27) — — — — (27)
Depreciation provided ERNfE
during the year (4633) (359) (12,034) (4176) (208) (21,410)
Closing net carrying amount EREEE 8388 1,058 47210 9,908 309 446,893
As at 31 December 201 | RZE——F
T-R=1-H
Cost A 48,894 2,59 448,776 14,685 2,004 516,957
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (40,506) (1,540) (21,566) (4777) (1,675) (70,064)
Net carrying amount BEFE 8,388 1,058 427210 9,908 329 446,893

The land and buildings included land in Hong Kong and is held under medium

term lease.

T REFEERERRTHBORSE
H) i o
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Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 7 3R 3R B 5

31 December 2011

—E——F1-f=+-H
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. RENF
2011 2010
—g--&  -T-TF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
KRB FHT FHT
At | January KR—A—H
Cost ZEN 115,055 —
Accumulated depreciation REtiE - -
Net carrying amount REFE 115,055 —
At | January, net carrying amount KR—A—H - EEFE 115,055 —
Additions NE — 15,055
Depreciation e (3,152) —
At 31 December, net carrying amount R+-—A=+—H EEFE 111,903 115,055
At 31 December nt-A=t—H
Cost XA 115,055 15,055
Accumulated depreciation REITE (3,152) -
Net carrying amount REHE 111,903 115,055

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under

medium term lease.

The fair value of the investment properties was HK$160.8 million at 31
December 2011 (2010: HK$116.3 million) by independent professionally
qualified valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services (HK)
Limited. Valuations were based on current prices in an active market. No
impairment has been recognised for the investment properties for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—E——FftZf=+-A
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BEFEE
Trading Club
rights membership Total
R5HE it Ast
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
r&H FET FET FET
As at | January 2010, 31 R_ZE-—FTF—-H—H
December 2010 —E-TFETZA=t-BRK
and 31 December 201 | —E——F+ZA=+—H
Net carrying amounts RREFE 1913 910 2,823

As at 31 December 2010 and 201 |, the Group had three trading rights in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and one trading right in The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 as the trading rights and club

membership have no expiry date.

RZZE-ZFR-Z——§+A=T
—B AEEREREAHERIME
RARIN=ZERZEREERERSM
BERARIN—ERHE - AR FHHER
SHBHEIHA  MEE-T—ZF
RZE——F+ZA=1+—-HLEFEL
EEEEVAE -
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Bt 7 3R 3R B 5

31 December 2011

—F——%1-A=+-A
14. OTHER ASSETS 14 HpEE
2011 2010
—g--%  c—2-2F
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
3 FHT FHT
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of REBBER SR
Hong Kong Limited: ERAAINRE :
— Compensation fund ~-HEES 150 150
— Fidelity fund -HBRE® 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —EfERRE 500 500
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong IR TFEBRRER
Securities Clearing Company Limited ERAAINEAE 150 150
Guarantee fund paid to Hong Kong IRNTFEEFREE
Securities Clearing Company Limited BERAAINIRES 460 370
Deposit with HKFE Clearing REBHELEER
Corporation Limited BERARINZRE 1,500 1,500
Funds deposits with the Securities and REFRBEEHER
Futures Commission ZEgNES 50 50
2,960 2,870
The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their fair AEEHMEENRAERL A TER
values. o
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5. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

The movements on the deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t+-8

15 EEHE

FREERAAGEREEZSNT

EEREEE tax depreciation Fair value gains Total
MEBERE LY ERE @t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--f -2-3F -$--F -2-3F =%--§F -I-If
Group HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ES ] TER TR TR TR TER TR
At | January w-A-H 1,056 — — — 1,056 —
Deferred tax charged to RERREL
profit or loss BEX M 2,534 1,056 5,489 — 8,023 1,056
At 31 December RT-ZA=t-H 3,590 1,056 5,489 — 9,079 1,056

Deferred tax assets

Unused tax losses

EEREBEE REAHREEER
2011 2010
—F-——F —T-%F
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
ARE THRT T
At | January Mn—A—H 2,530 —
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss REZRNELEHERA 3,361 2,530
At 31 December mn+ZA=+—H 5,891 2,530

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$66.6
million as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$41.7 million), that are available

indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in

which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as

they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and

it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which

the tax losses can be utilised.

RZE-——F+-_A=+—FH K5E
REBBNBIEFBNR666AEET
(ZE-—ZF MNTHEEBL)  &EA
AREEEEEBARINKRRERD R
M e

HMEARELBEEE —RER - M
HEBRILEREERT SN H
B ZADABETERA/ETHE
BE -
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31 December 2011

—E——F1-f=+-H
I5. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 15 EEHIE (&)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following VRS T SERRETEREEE
items:
2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-ZF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE FER FET
Tax losses HIEEE 30,880 26,319

16 HEIHMRE
FETHEINHARE (BRE-RLER
AIRTNELER) NEDRADT :

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
The movement in unlisted held-to-maturity investments which comprise one

senior note issued by a private company is summarised as follows:

2011 2010

—E——-F —EB-FF

Group HK$°000 HK$'000
33 FHT FHT
At | January R—H—H 77,833 —
Additions Zm = 77833
Impairment losses REBE — —
Exchange difference ERER (105) —
At 31 December nt=-A=t—H 77,728 77,833

The Group has not reclassified any financial assets measured at amortised cost

REENFE NG ESH D BERAAHH
RAMFAFEFAENEREE(CT—
TEHE) -

rather than at fair value during the year (2010: Nil).
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17. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t-A

17 BFEFNERRBER

2011 2010

—E——F —E-Z2F

Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE TET FET
Margin loans FRER 1,997,019 1,975,894
Term loans to customers KYIRFHTEHER 67,335 —
Gross loans and advances to customers KYIRFHERNBRAT 2,064,354 1,975,894
Less: impairment B ORE (139) -
2,064,215 1,975,894

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers' securities held as collateral. The
maximum credit limit granted for each customer is based on the customer's
financial background and the quality of related collateral. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a Credit and

Risk Management Department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong dollar prime
rate and are repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans
approximates to their fair value. No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of the directors, an aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the
nature of the margin loans business. The amount of credit facilities granted to
margin clients is determined by the discounted market value of the collateral
securities accepted by the Group. As at 31 December 2011, the total value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the margin loans was
approximately HK$8,289 million (2010: HK$12,216 million) based on the

market value of the securities as at the end of the reporting periods.

FREBEXK

AEEREFRIZRAEPREAR
B NEPHESRSEEAANER -8
AEPHNRBEERENUEFPNRE
ERRARHBERRNERARE -
AEERRFHERBERIGRNE
RS YKL TEEREREE M
EREERRE -

Eé?»l

BRTYREFPHMAREZNEECEKRES
ER BEATRESRFRFS WK
EREE ARERNEEIEEERT
BRE -BAREERE ERFEER
EBHME  RESIME TS REEN
BE WHERBRRRIN - ZTHE
EFPFNEEREENREASEEAD
BABEHFUETEET - R ——F
+ZA=+—RB FAFREXEAR
MEEREZESFBENARS289EEE T
(Z2—ZF 12216888 7T) 1L
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31 December 2011

—e-——F+=A=t-A

I17. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining the interest
rates, reference will be made to the credit standing of the relevant customers
and the quality of the collateral pledged. The term loans granted to customers
amounted to HK$67,026,000, and the accrued interests amounted to
HK$309,000 as at 31 December 201 I. The carrying amounts of the term loans

to customers approximate to their fair values.

17

BRTEFNERKRER ()
MFEFHEHER

AEETRAEFPRHETHEN - RETE
FMER  22ZREXPORBEEHR
MARFEROERRER - B =
—F+-RA=+-HETFREFATHE
FE#67,026,0008 T - HEFEA
#£309,0008 T - AT EFPHZEEHE
FEEREREATERAS

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and advances to ETEPHERRBAEREES N
customers are as follow: DK
2011 2010
-5  -2-%F
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE FERT TET
As at | January R—H—H — —
Impairment losses charged to profit or loss  FF Az KR EEE 139 —
As at 31 December nt-A=t—H 139 —

Included in the above provision of impairment of margin loans is a provision
for individually impaired margin loans of HK$139,000 (2010: nil) with a
carrying amount before provision of HK$1,004,000 (2010: nil). Save as
disclosed above, all loans and advances to customers are neither past due nor

impaired as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements
P E

31 December 2011

“E——#+-A=+-H
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 18 WA
(a) Analysis of accounts receivable (a) EWFHESLH
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of AEEXBKBETRE SO EKR
business of the Group are as follows: EEOREENT -
2011 2010
—g--&  C-T-3F
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
AEE TER FiERT
Accounts receivable arising from BB RS LR B EE B TIE
dealing and broking
— cash and custodian clients -ReERFAERP 21,343 50,134
— the Stock Exchange and other — BT R E A A E P
clearing houses 20,231 186,051
— brokers and dealers —-RERZHHE 293,709 679,782
Accounts receivable arising from PERE  EEEERRE
corporate finance, asset EBEE N RERRIE
management and investment
holding
— corporate clients and - EFFLREREES
investment funds 13,092 31,444
348,375 947,411
Less: impairment o ORE (12,009) (11,828)
336,366 935,583

BRETEBEZERERA2R 119
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31 December 2011

“E——#+-A=+-H
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 18 EWFE (&)
(b)  Accounts receivable neither past due nor impaired (b) 3 A A5 5 B 8 7Y JE W H
Accounts Accounts
receivable from the receivable
Accounts  Stock Exchange Accounts  from corporate
receivable and other receivable clients and
from cash and  clearing houses from brokers  investment funds
custodian clients JE W B R B and dealers bz
EURER Rt ERELR EFRRE Total
HERFHE BEFRA REBRAE ESHE @t
Group HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AEE TER TER TEx TER TER
As at 31 December 2011 R=B--%
TZA=t-H
Neither past due nor impaired W EBHEHIE 6,765 20,231 293,709 12,300 333,005
As at 31 December 2010 RZF-FF
+tZA=1-H
Neither past due nor impaired W &R E %2R E 38204 186,051 679,782 30,759 934816
No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an aging HREFRA  BERZFERKFENME
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these B RERAMUBSRENMEE Bt
accounts receivable. W EBEERER DT o
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired

Accounts

receivable from the

Accounts  Stock Exchange
receivable and other

from cashand  clearing houses

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

i

18 BWHKE (&)

(c) EEAERHEERE

Accounts
receivable
Accounts  from corporate

receivable clients and

from brokers  investment funds

custodian clients JE W R i and dealers Elbg
EhBEER Rt ERELER EFRRE Total
HEEFRAE EERHE RABRE BESFHE @t
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X&E FEL TERL TERL TERL TER
As at 3| December 201 RZIE-—-F
+=ZA=1+-8
Past due less than 6 months BEAEANA 2,543 — — — 2,543
Past due 6 to 12 months B E+TAA — — — 792 792
2,543 — — 792 3,335
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-%B%
t=A=t-8
Past due less than 6 months BEAEANA 74 — — 634 708
Past due 6 to 12 months B E+T_AA — — — 5 51
74 — — 685 759

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients which are past due
but not impaired represent client trades on various securities exchanges
which are unsettled beyond the settlement date. When the cash and
custodian clients failed to settle on the settlement date, the Group has
the rights to force-sell the collaterals underlying the securities
transactions. The outstanding accounts receivable from cash and
custodian clients as at 31 December 2010 and 201 | are considered past
due but not impaired after taking into consideration the recoverability
from collaterals. Collaterals held against such loans are publicly traded

securities.

ERHERAERERE REERRP
FEENTREFXZAREE AR
MAEENRP X BIERHOFIR - —
BHReRAEARFPRENEERHE
3R ARERAEEH HERES
RHEENERm - KEREA R A
KEER R-T-TFR-_T——F
TZA=t—HNREERKRE N
EREPHARRESCBHERH
B ZREERRENERARAARAFE

BHES o

°
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B A& R R B A
31 December 201 |

—e-——F+=A=t-A

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(c)  Accounts receivable past due but not impaired (continued)

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds which

are past due but not impaired represent receivables arising from asset

management, corporate finance and advisory services which have not yet

been settled by clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The

outstanding accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment

funds as at 31 December 2010 and 2011 are considered not to be

impaired as the credit rating and reputation of trade counterparties are

sound.

(d)  Impaired accounts receivable

Accounts
receivable

from cash and

Accounts

receivable from the

Stock Exchange
and other

clearing houses

18 EWRIE (&)

(c) BEAEXEENERNE(E)

ERHBERRENEREREP RERE
EERRERPRAKE-REEHR
HAEENEUTE (EXAEEESE
EEBERBRRY) - R-_F-TFR
“E-—E+ A=t -BREEREK
EEEPRREASFBRBIERR
B RRARRZHFERERERFRR

BE -

(d) BHEEEYKE

Accounts

receivable

Accounts  from corporate

receivable clients and

from brokers  investment funds

custodian clients JE B R FR and dealers bz
EURER Rt EUBLER EFRRE Total
HERFHE FERTE REBRAE EeRAE @t
Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARE TER TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 201 | R=B--%
t=A=t+-H
Impaired accounts receivable BRERKHE 12,035 = = = 12,035
Less: impairment A ORE (12,009) — — — (12,009)
26 — — — 26
As at 3| December 2010 R-2-B%
+ZA=t-H
Impaired accounts receivable BRERKE 11,836 — — — 11,836
Less: impairment W ORME (11,828) — — — (11,828)
8 — — — 8
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(d)

Impaired accounts receivable (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients are considered

impaired when clients failed to settle according to settlement terms after

18

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t+-8

EWHKE (8)

(d)

EwEERE (F)

REEEMmA A KEEE
PRERBEEGRETHER

4t 2
=

taking into consideration the recoverability of collaterals. FBERE RAERPREAGHKRER
A e
The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as EUWFIEREREESNT
follows:
2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-ZF
Group HK$’000 HK$'000
r&EH TER FET
As at | January R—H—H 11,828 3253
Impairment losses charged to FABRRHREEE
profit or loss 183 10,012
Impairment losses reversed BEeREREE 2 (6)
Amount written off as uncollectible #8857~ R Y Bl 49 ZIE — (1,431)
As at 31 December nt-A=t—H 12,009 1,828
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31 December 2011

—E——#+ZA=1—fA
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BENARE - ReRHEMEKRFKE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TERT FAT
Prepayments, deposits BENRE e
and other receivables Ko H i fE W 5kIB 10,227 8,445
Interest receivables JE Y R 2. 7,808 3,525
Total et 18,035 11,970
Company
AT
Prepayments, utility and other deposits BNRIE - 2HFEREMES 625 386
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets LREEREABTARE - A Lt
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no RRNeREERT AT EROLHN
recent history of default. Y HIEER -

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 20 RAFEFABZNEREE

2011 2010
—E-—fF —T-TF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TERT TET
Financial assets held for trading: RIEBEENEMEE -
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAKRE - BRAFE
— in Hong Kong —REE 51,607 84,099
Financial assets designated at fair value BERATEFABRNEREE
through profit or loss
— unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) —FEMRAKRE (Mita) 39,000
— unlisted convertible promissory note — LM BRRER
(the "Convertible Promissory Note") (Tl zE]) (MEEb)
(Note (b)) 60,109
150,716 84,099
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(continued)

Notes:

@)

The Group has entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) in May 201 | to acquire non-voting equity shares of a company (the
“Investee”) amounting to HK$22,855,000. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, if the audited and forecasted consolidated profit after tax of the
Investee for the two years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012 is less than a certain
threshold level, the Group will be compensated for the shortfall. No

compensation has been received for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

The Group purchased the two-year Convertible Promissory Note issued by a
third party (the “Issuer”) amounting to approximately HK$42,650,000 in May
2011.The interest income accrued and earned from the Convertible Promissory
Note for the year ended 3| December 2011 was HK$1,689,000. Pursuant to a
warrant agreement entered into between the Issuer and the Group in May 201 [,
the Issuer guaranteed that the audited and forecasted consolidated profit after tax
of the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2011 should not be less than a certain threshold level, otherwise the
Group will be compensated by the Issuer for the shortfall. No compensation has

been received for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t-A

20 BAFEFABRENEGRERE (B)

M

(a)

(b)

AEER-_T——FRATURBRE
([RERE]D) WE-—RDA ([FRED
ANEREEEZRD 285
22,855,000/ 7T ° IREBERBIWME - 65
BERABE_S——FR_T—=F
NAZTBIEFENEERRERNGE
BRBEEFERE-REIKFE  A5E
BEHEEHTIR HBEZZ——F+
ZAEH-HLEFE ASETEES
EAE

AEER-_T——FRARERSE=H
([BATAD) BITHMF B AR FEL
42,650,000 7 c HE-T——F+=
A=t-BILEFE TARZEENR
BEEF 2 WA 51,689,000 T © 1R
BRTARAEAR T ——ERFH]
VRRERE  BOARBHZ2EWE
AABEZT-EER-T——F+=
A=t BLEFENEERRENGS
BREEERTEERE-—REKTE &
AAREERERTAREEETR - &
E-E——#+-AZF+-HIEE"
KEBUTEECHE -
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—e-——F+=A=t-A

21.

CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised financial
institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal business transactions.
The Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own

obligations under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571).

21 BEFERRTERRAESRAEE

B9
BFErARITES

AEBERBAEREBRRBILETE
P UBEREFPELEXBBRETME
EMFE - REBEEFRBERH (B
BIEDIFESTIE)  ARELBHRERP
TEBEEBHER -

Cash and cash equivalents BEREZEEY
2011 2010
—E-—F —T-TF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TERT FET
Cash and bank balances Be RiR1THEER 319,798 296,812
Time deposits EHER 342,058 144,819
661,856 441,631
2011 2010
—F-——F —T-%F
Company HK$’000 HK$'000
YN TER FAET
Cash and bank balances Be RiR1THEER 104 10]

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$8,782,000 (2010:
HK$54,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no history of default.
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INVESTMENTS IN A SUBSIDIARY 22 RMBRARE
2011 2010
—g--&  -T-TF
Company HK$°000 HK$'000
KA FH FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost LR ERAE 1,268,440 1,268,440

Capital contribution in respect of HEEBURNAEROBELE

employee share-based compensation 12,325 —
1,280,765 1,268,440

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 201 | are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/ operations

Nominal value of

issued ordinary

RZF-——FF+ZA=+—-A WEZD
AIEERIT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

Company name HMRL/ share capital ARAER Principal activities
AAER Seny BRTEERNEE REaat IERR
Direct Indirect
% )3
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited Samoa/ Hong Kong HK$31,980,000 100% — Investment holding and
BZZE% (BE) ARAH BED/ES 31,980,000 T provision of general
administration and support
service to its subsidiaries
RARRRMENBAT
RUEE R RRS
Guotai Junan Securities Hong Kong HK$2,000,000,000 — 100% Securities dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited i 2,000,000,000 & BHREERER
BRERER (BR) ARAH
Guotai Junan Futures Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100% Futures dealing and broking
(Hong Kong) Limited 5 50,000,000 %7 HEEE R

BEFELHE (Bk) ARAT

BREZEBEZERERLTF
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22. INVESTMENTS IN A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

22 RHBLARRE (&)

Place of Nominal value of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ operations issued ordinary attributable to the Company
Company name HERAL/ share capital ARAEL Principal activities
AFEH feny BRTEBROAE READt IEEH
Direct Indirect
E& 3
Guotai Junan Finance Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 — 100% Money lending and trading
(Hong Kong) Limited A 1,000,000 %7t in securities
BRELHBEEARLA BERESRE
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 — 100% Provision of investment
BREXREERAT B 50,000,000 &7 advisory services
REREBARS
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Asset management
ERERAEEE (DH) BROA EA 5,000,000 &L AEEE
Guotai Junan Fund Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 — 50% Asset management and
Management Limited' &k 10,000,000 % 7T trading in securities
AFEZESERARAE BEEELESRE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 — 100% Leveraged foreign exchange
BRERNEERAR &k 30,000,000 %t dealing and broking

BEANER S REL

Note |: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or

remove the majority of the members of its board of directors.

Amount due from a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amount approximates to its fair value as at the end of

each reporting period.
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 23 BARE
2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-TF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
r&E FERT TET
Accounts payable arising from HEBERKLEEBESE
dealing and broking i) FE T 5RIR
~ clients —-&P 6,345,325 6,682,318
— brokers and dealers —RERR 5@ 48,869 71275
— the Stock Exchange and — B P R E M AEE P
other clearing houses 25,680 —
Accounts payable arising from underwriting, HB3H + BEEE - LERE
asset management, corporate finance N AR o IR 75 E A ) B A SR IR
and advisory services
— corporate clients —EEP 51,361 25,347
6,471,235 6,778,940
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except for REBDENRIBERAREREFER
certain accounts payable to clients which represents margin deposits received EETENTEPAFERREFPRE

from clients for their trading activities under the normal course of business.
Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits stipulated are

repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment immediately
within one business day. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of
directors, the aging analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature

of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust accounts with
authorised institutions of HK$6,122 million (2010: HK$5,875 million), Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited and other futures
dealers of HK$224 million (2010: HK$60 1 million).

Accounts payable are non interest bearing except for the accounts payable to

the clients.

REBBERTETERRPUBEL
REEHRI - REBHATREEN S
BENBRERERP -

AEEEREIEE X BRI EERA
INEKR e AEBY BERERED
RAREZRARERIAXEEZHON
B RESTIERHUEIMEE -

BN TEFORENDETHR R #
BEAEFM6I12EBEL(ZE—F
F:5875RBHET) BAHEHE
BRAkEtBRERSGHE #2240 8H
TL(ZE—ZF :601HEBET) °

RENEP R

B o
o

BN - A RIRY A A
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 24 HtoEARERERRE
2011 2010
—E2——-F —ET-FTF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TERT FET
Other payables H At R38R 919 3267
Accrued liabilities FERTHR 76,869 102,894
77,788 106,161

Company ¥ N/NE]
Accrued liabilities e TR 1,005 1,220
Other payables are non interest bearing and have an average term of three HihEARIBAGE - B FHHRA3ME
months. e

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 25 FEBTER

2011 2010
i —E-FF
Group HK$°000 HK$'000
rEE TER FET
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEABEITRER 200,000 —
The Company has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank borrowings up to BEREHR  KARAIRAEENRT
HK$530 million (2010: nil) as at the end of the reporting period. ERRETREKLEBEET (=
T-TFE)NER-

The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Hong Kong Interbank AEBRTEFTGREBRITRERE
Offered Rate plus an interest spread per annum and were repayable within MEBEHE  RBEHR=EARASLZ
three months or less at the end of the reporting period. NIER -
The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate to their fair values as ARERTELTEXR  WAKERT
the impact on discounting is not significant. ERMEREEREAFERSE
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26 BRA
Shares g
2011 2010
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised: AR
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each B 0.1 BTH T BAR 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
[,640,000,000 1,640,000,000 %
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each Bi 0.1 B TH & BAL 164,000 164,000
A summary of the transactions during the year in the Company’s issued share ARBRFADETRAZ S0
capital is as follows: K
Number of Share Share
shares in issue capital premium Total
EETRHAE [EN R in i (8 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEL
At | January 2010 RZZE-Z5—-H—H — — — —
Issue of share (Note (7)) BT (HIEEG) — - -
Allotment of shares pursuant *ETEHXHET‘% i & Ak n
to the share swap (Note (ii)) (P &E(ii) 999 — 1,268,440 1,268,440
Capitalisation for issuance i§$1b§§fﬂ R
of new shares (Note (iif)) (B = (iii)) 1,229,999,000 123,000 (123,000) —
Shares issuance pursuant to BEZFEEETRG
the Global Offering GEA)
(Note (iv)) 410,000,000 41,000 1,722,000 1,763,000
Share issuance costs incurred FRNEENRR
during the year (Note (v)) BORAR (HEWV) — — (98,717) (98717)
At 31 December 2010, RZZB-FFE+_A=+—H"
| January 2011 and —T——F-RF-8HK
31 December 201 | “E——F+ZA=+—H 1640000000 164,000 2,768,723 2,932,723

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

(ii)

On 8 March 2010, the Company was incorporated with limited liability in Hong
Kong with authorised share capital of HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.10 each. On the same date, one share
was issued at par value to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited, representing 100% of
the issued share capital and the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

Pursuant to a share swap agreement dated |4 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited from Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited ("GJFHL") in consideration for the Company
issuing and allotting 999 shares at par to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited. After the
share swap, the Company became the holding company of the subsidiaries now

comprising the Group.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution dated 19 June 2010, the Company
capitalised an amount of HK$122,999,900 from the share premium account; and
the sum was applied in paying up in full at par 1,229,999,000 shares, which were

allotted and issued to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 July 2010 and 410,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.| each were issued at HK$4.3 per share. The excess of
the proceeds over the nominal value of the total number of ordinary shares

issued of HK$ 1,722 million was credited to the share premium account.

The Company incurred HK$98,717,000 as share issuance costs for the listing on
the Stock Exchange for the year ended 31 December 2010, HK$2,984,000 of

which was related to inter-company transactions.

As a result, the share issuance cost for the Group was only HK$95,733,000 and
the share premium was HK$2,771,707,000 as at 31 December 2010 and 2011,
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(i

(i)

(iii)

(v)

(%)
(%)

AR =E-FF=AN\REEAEM
KIRBRAF  ZEBRAR
1,000,000,00078 7 * %3 /10,000,000,000
BB REECI0ETHR - RER - 1
BEMERERTTERETERERD
Al ZBNARHCETEA - ARFK
RERELEBRBRATNZEMNBL
Al e

RER-Z-TFXATERTILNK
DERHE  ARAREREZERE
BUBERER (BE)BERARNME
BETRA  REAXARARREERE
FELEBAR DR RECHM M
o B EiRiR - RRBRARBAER
AEBERBRRMNERAF o

BRE-_Z-ZEXATAANRERE
R -AREEHERNEERPH
122,999,9008 TA AR - ZERELD
REE SR 1,229,999,0008 K17 %
ERNEERBERETTERERER
BRAF -

ARAER-F-FFLANRERR
Frbm . WUERENAIETET
410,000,0008 BB EE0.1/E L E &
B o IR AERR L PR T E AR A
HENEE17288ATEFARD
i B o

ARRBEZT-TF+=ZA=1+—H
EFEEBM EMOROETRA S
98,717,000 7T + H H12,984,000/% 7T
BEARRRSER -

Bt RZE—ZFR-T——F+=
A=1—8  AEEORHETRAE
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes
including a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) and a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in
recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members. Eligible participants of
the schemes include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, and other employees of the Group. Details of the Share
Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme are set out in notes 27 and 28

to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that

date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be
granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any [2-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of

this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options granted to an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any |2-month period, are

subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

26

27

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 BRREE (B

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$ ! in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three years and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of offer of the

share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but may
not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value (i.e.

HK$0.10 each) of the Company's ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’ meetings.

On 10 June 2011, the Company granted 40,000,000 share options to its
directors and employees under the Share Option Scheme. The option period
of the share options is from 10 June 2011 to 9 June 2021. One-third of the
share options granted will be vested on first, second and third anniversaries of
the date of grant respectively. The exercise price of the options was HK$4.30
per share which was the offer price of the Company listed on the Stock
Exchange on 8 July 2010. The fair value of the equity-settled share options was
estimated on the date of grant using a binomial pricing model, taking into

account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

The following table lists out the key inputs to the model used:

Share price at the date of grant (per share) HK$3.25
Exercise price (per share) HK$4.30
Expected volatility 45.17%
Expected dividend yield 1.78%
Risk-free interest rate 223%
Weighted average share option price (per share) HK$0.97
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

For the year ended 3| December 2011, the Group has recognised a share-
based compensation expense of HK$12,805,000 for the grant of share options
under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss (2010: nil).

Movements of share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme

during the year are as follows:

B IS SRR M EE

—e——Ft=A=t-A

27 BREE (B

Bz-_2——4%+-_fF=t+-HI*F
B ASERREERENERLER
EMERBERIAURMAEREEH
%12,805,0008 T (ZE—ZF : &) »

FRBREMETHRTERBRENE
gmT

2010
—2—-f —E-FF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
Y options T options
TEE BREHEA TEE BREHE
HK$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T BlET T
At | January K—A—H — — — —

Granted during the year FRAKERR

and at 31 December +-A=+—H1 430 40,000 — —

No share option was exercised, cancelled or lapsed for the year ended 3|
December 2011 (2010: nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 40,000,000 (2010: nil)
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.44% (2010: nil) of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31
December 2011 and up to the date of approval of these financial statements.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 40,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$4,000,000
and share premium of HK$ 168,000,000 (before issuance expenses).

The expected volatility and the expected dividend vyield reflect the
assumptions that the historical volatility and the historical dividend vyield,
respectively, are indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the

actual outcome.

ﬁﬁ_f——iﬂ'_ﬂ:ﬂ'—ﬁﬂ:i
—§¢ : ?ﬂ%) °

RS BEERE - ROARERE
Z| ™ % 540,000,000 (=T —ZF :
T)WATEERE  NER_F—F
+tZA=+-HREZZEVBHRRE
ﬁt‘&ElHﬁJt$ Al BETRN42.44%
(Z2—ZF: %) - BEARARED
Hﬂiﬂ% CRETESHRTERESSE
BB 913 47 AN 22 740,000,000 & i A%
R % A< %8 413 04,000,000 70 & B A7 i
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28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 27 October 201 I, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme under
which shares of the Company (the “"Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to
selected employees (including directors) of any members of the Group (the
“Selected Employees™) pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust
deed of the Share Award Scheme.The Share Award Scheme became effective
on the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will

remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e. 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the Share Award Scheme
is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
adoption date. The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued share capital

of the Company as at the adoption date.

When a selected employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might
include service and/or performance conditions, specified by the Board of the
Company at the time of making the award and become entitled to the shares
of the Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer the
relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The selected employee
however is not entitled to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend

derived from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the trustee acquired 4,727,000
ordinary shares of the Company for the Share Award Scheme through
purchases on the open market at a total cost (including related transaction
costs) of approximately HK$9,384,000. No Awarded Shares were granted for
the year ended 31 December 2011,
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29. RESERVES

()

(b)

Group

Notes to Financial Statements

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the

current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 3|1 December 2010 and 201 |

represents merger reserve, being the difference between the issued

share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited and the amount of

share capital and share premium of the Company transferred and issued

to Guotai Junan Holdings Limited in exchange for the entire issued share

capital of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited.

B IS SRR M EE

i

(a) ZEH

& o

R-E-—FFER-FT——%1+-H
E+—EI CAREEMEHERERS
B WEHFER (BE)ARAA
HEBTRARALAREARER
ERBR DA EERBTRARK
e NERERER (BE) BR

RANEHEHETRA) 2B BN
8o
Company (b) ZFKARA
Shares held
Share-based  under the share
compensation award scheme
Share reserve RERSD Proposed Retained
premium DRGRER REsta dividend profits
RO RE HRERE BRORG RRRE REEHN
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TEx TEn TEn
At | January 2010 RZZ2-Z5-A-H — — — — —
Total comprehensive FREZENRES
income for the year — — — — 17919
Allotment of shares pursuant RERNERRE KRR
to the share swap 1,268,440 — — — —
Capitalisation for issuance B BITHR
of new shares (123,000) — — — —
Shares issuance pursuant to REZREERIRN
the Global Offering 722,000 — — — —
Share issuance costs incurred AEFEEH
in the current year RIABTHAR (98,717) — — — —
Interim dividend declared SR EHRE — — — — (32.800)
Proposed final dividend LR B 8 — — — 82,000 (82,000)
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29. RESERVES (continued)
(b)  Company (continued)

29 fkfE (8)
(b) A 2E(#)

Shares held
Share-based  under the share
compensation award scheme
Share reserve RER®R Proposed Retained
premium NRG AR ®B:HE dividend profits
Rty EE NHERE BEORG BRRE REEF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TR
At 31 December 2010 and R-E-TF
| January 201 TZA=+-AEk
“F—%5-F-H 2768723 - — 82,000 3,119
Total comprehensive income ERZENGER
for the year = = = = 146,823
Fair value of share-based FEERHBREN
payment in respect of RiABER
share options granted NROLTE — 12,805 - - -
Purchase of shares under the BERHRE2BE
share award scheme (note 28)  fRf3 (15t 28) = = (9,384) — —
Final dividend paid XA RERE (82,000)
Interim dividend declared ERPERE — — — = (49,200)
Proposed final dividend FRRHR S - - - 98,116 (98,116)
At 31 December 201 | RZF-——F
TZA=Tt-H 2,768,723 12,805 (9,384) 98,116 2,626

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year
ended 3| December 2011 includes a profit of HK$146,823,000 (2010:
HK$117,919,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company.
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30. OPERATING LEASE AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note |12) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms of three years. The terms of the

leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables

under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

30

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011
“F—#{ZAZt-A

KERERERAE
fEREBA

AEERBEEEHERHEHBEAREY
Z(We12)  HOCERRR=F -H
B —RAERPNERLRE -

R-F-——%+A=+-8  REF
R R T MR A A A
REREERERERENT

2011 2010

—EB-—-F —ZE-%F

Group HK$°000 HK$'000

rEE TET THET

Within one year —FER 2,159 —
In the second to fifth years, inclusive R_ZERF (BREEMF) 3,539
5,698

As lessee
Leases for the properties are negotiated for a term of one year.

At 3| December 2011, the Group had total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

fEREEA
ZEVEHERRER—F -

RZF——F+tZA=t+—H0 F%E
RETTHHELEREE TARRAZ
HORREX MO EEREFREREN
N

2011 2010

=F-——F —T-%F

Group HK$°000 HK$'000
AEE TER TET
Within one year —FR = 15
In addition to the operating lease commitments disclosed above, the Group BREXBRBENGEHEAEN  AE

had capital commitments for IT upgrade and renovation of premises of
approximately HK$570,000 which were contracted but not provided for as at
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$6,750,000).

ERAGREARARBNMMEELER
AHEX)570,0008 T+ ZRECFTAEY
ARZE——F+ZA=T—BTUE
#(ZZ—ZF : 6,750,000 ) °
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31 December 201 |

—e-——F+=A=t-A

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group has undertaken underwriting obligations to capture placing and
IPO activities. The Board has resolved to ensure that the Group has adequate
working capital to meet such obligations. As at 31 December 2011, the
underwriting obligations were approximately HK$388.3 million (2010:
HK$674.2 million).

In addition to the guarantee provided in respect of bank borrowings as
mentioned in note 25 to the financial statements, as at 3|1 December 201 |, the
Company provided guarantees up to approximately HK$155.5 million (2010:
approximately HK$77.8 million) in favour of financial institutions in respect of
the trading limit granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary principally engaged in

the provision of futures dealing services.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
2011 Annual Report

31

REMEREXRARE
AEEARERENLAREENRED
RECHEEAE ZEREMRESTLA
B UBRRASERERRNEERS
REMTEAZ R-T——F+ZA=
T—H BEAENARIBIBEAT
(Z2—TF :6742BBET) °

BT BRRN 25T ) B EITHE
HETREMERN  RZT——F+=
A=+—8 ARAlA—HMEEREH
EEEEBMN2ENBLARANRZRE
MEREERET RERZ 155588
BTER(ZE-ZF: 7788 8%
) °



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS 3R 25 B 2
31 December 201 |
—g-—F+=A=+-H
32 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS 32 EEREREEREME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMz
The emoluments of every Director of the Company paid/payable by the AREBRE-_T-TFR-_T——
Group for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 are set out F+ZA=+—-HLEFEEHN/E
below: NARARSESHMEHIIWT -
Year ended 31 December 201 | BE-E2--f+t-A=1+-HL
B
Employer’s
Share-based ~ contribution
compensation  to pension
expense scheme
Director ~ Salary and DY B Discretionary Other
Name of Director fee commission ~REWM  MEKE  bonuses  benefits Total
Exps Ezpe FeRfe  MERX  HEMER  BERL  HERH a3t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Térn TEnr TEx FEx  FEx  TER  TEX

Executive Directors: HITEE:

Yim Fung [ - 1,404 1,920 12 13,870 540 17,746
Li Guangjie A - 1,530 480 12 924 — 2946
Li Sang, Edward 3 - [,485 480 12 924 - 2,901
Wong Tung Ching I%% — 2,160 960 12 4,032 — 7,164
Non-executive Directors: FHTEZ:

Chen Geng® Bk — - — — - — -
Fu Tingmei® BExy 300 - 160 - - = 460
Song Ming® NG 300 — 160 — — — 460
Tsang Yiu Keung® LREHy 300 — 160 — — — 460

900 6,579 4320 48 19,750 540 32,137

BRETEBRERERAT 141
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31 December 2011

—e-——F+=A=t-A

32 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

32 EEREREEEMSE (B)

(a) EFEM% (&

Year ended 31 December 2010 BEZ-_F-EE+-H=1+-HL
£E
Employer's
Share-based  contribution
compensation  to pension
expense scheme
Director  Salary and DY Sl BT Discretionary Other
Name of Director fee commission ~ RERH  HRAKE  bonuses  benefits Total
2% g2 HeRfe RERX  HIHR  BERLD  EhEN gt
HK$000  HK$000  HKFO00  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HKH000
TEx  TExr  TEr  TEr  TEx  TEr  TEn
Executive Directors: HITES:
Yim Fung Gl — 1,287 — 12 15,020 3513 19,832
Li Guangje FRA — 1313 — 12 | 400 — 2705
Li Sang, Edward £ — 1352 — 12 1 400 — 1764
Wong Tung Ching %8 - 1,851 - 12 4800 - 6,663
Non-executive Directors: HHTEE
Chen Geng® Bk 246 — — — — — 246
FuTingmei® FEEo 11 — - - — - 16|
Song Ming® REY 16l — — — — — 16
Tsang Yiu Keung® £ 6l — — — — — 161
729 5,803 — 48 22,620 3513 32,713
(@)  During the year, Chen Geng waived emolument of HK$300,000 for the year @ X BUNEHBZE-T——4F
ended 3| December 2011 and has also agreed to waive 2010 emolument +tZA=+t-BRLEFENME
of HK$246,000. 300,000/ 7T ¥REHE=-F—
TEH £246,000% T ©
(b)  Independent Non-executive Directors b) BIUFHTESF -
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32 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

()

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Save as Note (a) above, there was no arrangement under which a

director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

As illustrated in above table, during the year certain directors were
granted share options in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above

directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2010:
one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 32(a)
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2010: four)

non-directors, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

(a)

(b)

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t-A

32 EENEHREEEME (B)

EEZHE (8

RS HEEERER
REREFAEAHFMOLLGE -

BWERFA - FR ETESER
BALRERE SR KERNAE
BREMRGERBLRE  EFE
N BImERME27 - REBBK
ERBHRNER AR BRE
AFENRRLEHREE - TAF
EHBHREAIRN B A LA
ESHFMBE -

EURBHMAL

FRRNERFMEERRE A (=
T-FF: —R)EF HFMFE
N EXHEE32(a) - FREH=S
(Z2-Z2F :MR)FEERSFH

MEENHFMFENT

2011 2010

=F-——F —T-%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TiET

Salary and commission FekAe 20,891 33417
Employer’s contribution EEXRASFEHER

to pension scheme 36 48

Discretionary bonuses B TEAL - 5,700

20,927 39,165

BREZTEBRIEZERERAA
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31 December 201 |
—F——#4+-A=+-A
32 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 32 EEREREEEMNE (B)
(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EREFHFMAL (E
The emoluments of the remuneration highest-paid individuals of the AEEESHEMALHMEN FU
Group fall within the following bands: TH#E :
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Emolument bands B < &5 [
- HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 — 4,000,001 /&L= 4,500,000 & 7T I -
- HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 — 6,500,001 L ZE 7,000,000 7 7T -
- HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 — 7,000,001 &L E 7,500,000 /& 7T [ -
- HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 — 9,000,001 /&= 9,500,000 & 7T I |
- HK$ 10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000  — 10,500,001 #&7¢ & 11,000,000 & 7T - |
- HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000  — 12,000,001 # 7T & 12,500,000 /& 7T = |
3 4

144  GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 December 2011

—F——F+-A=+-H
33. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 33 RETHELENAERE
2011 2010
—B——-F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Cash flows from operating activities RETFHELENRERE
Profit before tax BR % B A 330,235 288,407
Adjustments for: P -
Depreciation e 24,562 19,208
Share-based compensation expense ARt AERNHERS 12,805
Finance costs EED 2,246 4142
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERREER
plant and equipment 27 82
Impairment of loans and BTEFPHNERRBFAE
advances to customers 139
Impairment of accounts receivable JE W R IE R (E 18l 10,006
Foreign exchange loss on REIMREERLES
held-to-maturity investments 105
370,300 321,845
Decrease in an amount due from FEW T R A B RIER D
an intermediate holding company — 359
Increase in other assets Hth & EE 1N (90) (30)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets BATEFABRD
at fair value through profit or loss cmEE (Bm R (66,617) 8,468
Increase in loans and advances to customers % F % B 8 E 5% & 2508 N (88,460) (1,115,163)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable  JEUFRIER A,/ (3&10) 599,036 (611,327)
Increase in prepayments, FERNIE - B RE M EUKFIEE M
deposits and other receivables (6,065) (4,867)
Increase in client trust bank balances B ErTiRITAE BRI N (246,797) (195,728)
Decrease in amounts due to FEfT[R Z P B A R SR IR
fellow subsidiaries — (645)
Decrease in amount due to the JE 7 B SR P IR B R IBR
ultimate holding company — (578)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable FERFIE ORd) /1Em (307,705) 823,725
Decrease in other payables Hofth & 5 008 2 FE St RRIB R A
and accrued liabilities (28,373) (32,190)
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31 December 201 |
—e——F1=f=4-A
33. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued) 33 RETHELENERSRE (&
2011 2010
—E2——-F —ET-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
Cash generated from/(used in) operations K& XEBEE/ (BHA) B 225,229 (806,131)
Interest paid ERFE (2,246) (4,142)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBREH (44,245) (34,987)
Net cash flows from/(used in) rEEYHEL/ (BH)
from operating activities Reng#8 178,738 (845,260)
Cash flows from operating RETHNRERERE
activities included:
- Interest received — B UWF & 211,861 98,217
- Dividend received —EHRBE 4,885 4202
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B 3R F 5%
31 December 201
—Z——FftZf=+-H
34. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 3 BEREBENIBER
An analysis of the maturity profile of certain assets and liabilities of the Group AEEETAERAGRRENAELS
analysed by the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the ZARNFBMBENRSRBEZABERLS
contractual maturity date is as follows: DB UNNE
Up to | to less than 3 to less than | to
| month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
HEART 1318 A 3-1218A8 I-5 & At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2011 R=B--F
+=A=+-H
Held-to-maturity investments REIBRE — — — 71,728 77,728
Loans and advances RTEPH
to customers ERRBR 2,002,066 47,026 15,123 - 2,064,215
Accounts receivable e 335,179 681 506 — 336,366
Financial assets at fair value BATERA
through profit or loss BaMeRARE = = = 60,109 60,109
Client trust bank balances EPERRTHER 5845871 275,897 — — 6,121,768
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 432,530 229,326 — — 661,856
8,615,646 552,930 15,629 137,837 9,322,042
Accounts payable R FE (6,469,235) (2,000) — — (6,471,235)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings itBRITER = (200,000) = = (200,000)
(6,469,235) (202,000) — (6,671,235)

BR=ETEBREZERERAR 147
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34. MATURITY PROFILE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

34 BEREENEHER (B)

Up to | to less than 3 to less than | to

I 'month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
AT -3 A 3-12fER -5 6 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TAT TEL

As at 31 December 2010 R-Z-%%

+ZA=+-H
Held-to-maturity investments BEIEEE — — — 77,833 77,833
Loans and advances BTEPH

to customers BERRBH 1,975,894 - - - 1,975,894
Accounts receivable TR IE 904,138 30,343 [,102 — 935,583
Client trust bank balances EFERRTEHS 5,648,532 23439 3,000 - 5874971
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 396,628 45003 — — 441631
8925192 298,785 4,102 77,833 9305912
Accounts payable eI 3IE (6,778,940) — — — (6,778,940)
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31 December 2011

—F-——F+=f=1-A

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in the (a)

3B BHEAITS

RRIMBREBTEABHTINZS

RS - REBNER RS
?5

financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions

with related parties during the year. ETUTERRS :
Notes 2011 2010
B &E —E2——-F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Commission expenses to P REER DA
the ultimate holding company MAeHAX 0) (4,232) (5,867)
Professional fees paid to X T RIZMEAE
a fellow subsidiary MEXE (ii) (12,000) (9,600)
Management fee income and BRAKEMEARER
performance fee income from KRAZWBARIKRE
a private fund managed by L5 A& W)
a subsidiary of the Group and EREBERKFREBBA
invested by a fellow subsidiary (iii) 861 9,045
Commission income from a private B EXME (il EES
fund mentioned in note (iii) WEREY A & A (iv) 75 100
Management fee income and BEARREIZENBARIER
performance fee income of KA ZHERRRE
a private fund managed by a wholly — RIFLEE & WELAY
owned subsidiary of the Company ERBERFRBRA
and invested by a fellow subsidiary (v) 6,673 7,325
Total fees received from a private BLEXMEVMmLLERES
fund mentioned in note (v) WERE 2 ER (vi) 2,252 2,061
Management fee income and BEARRBIZEMBARIER
performance fee income of a private R E ZIFB R AR EH
fund managed by a wholly-owned LB E S EH
subsidiary of the Company and EREBRRRBHA
invested by a fellow subsidiary (vii) 625 4,654

BREZEBEZERERLTF
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—e-——F+=A=t-A

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

3B BEAIXS (B)

(continued) (a) (&)
Notes 2011 2010
B 3E —g2——-F —T-%TF
HK$°000 HK$000
TERT FET
Management fee income of a public ~ BARF2EWBAREE
fund managed by a wholly-owned RRAZMBARIRER
subsidiary of the Company and NEES YR
invested by a fellow subsidiary EREBERKFREBRA (viii) [,116 1,174
Commission income of the investment B = 3P & (vii) & (viii) 7 it % &
funds mentioned Eelmume A
in notes (vii) and (viii) (ix) 162 336
Commission income of a public fund ~ F&ARIZER AR EER
managed by the ultimate REETHAEKA
holding company (x) 1,205 732
Commission income from BAREEFZEE ABRRE
key management personnel mEWA
of the Group (xi) 10 5

() Commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were calculated (il ZNTEREERAFANASAZEZES
based on 30% of the commission income earned from clients trading EPR SRRk EBBRAEIMME S K
Shenzhen and Shanghai B shares. A#I30%TE ©

(i) Professional fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for the provision of capital iy BE-Z——E+-_A=1+—-HILEE
market information were charged at HK$ 1,000,000 per month for the year FRAZRMBRAREERTHERMNE
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$800,000 per month). ¥£5%5A1,000,0008TE R (=%

—Z4 : £ 800,000 7T)

(i) Management fee income and performance fee income received from a (i) BAARMBRARIEERRZRNEAT
private fund managed by a subsidiary of the Company and invested by a RENLEESUDNERBUARE
fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.25% per annum of the net asset value RBUAREE_Z-ZER-F——
(“NAV") at the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive E+ZA=+-BUEEEXAKE—HE
increment in the NAV for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011, THEENEEZE([EEFE]) BF

1.26% AR EEFEEMN20%RE -

(iv)  Commission income received from the private fund mentioned in note (i) (iv) BEXMFGmiiEEe knnme

above was charged at 0.125% of the transaction value.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

\

(vi)

(i)

(viii)

(ix)

()

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a
private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at [.5% per annum of the
NAV at the last working day of each month and 20% of the positive
increment in the NAV for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 201 1.

Total fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (v) above
included commission income which was based on 0.25% of the transaction
value and interest income which was based on an annual rate of 3% over
the best lending rate on Hong Kong dollars quoted by The Standard
Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited on its overdue amount and other

handling income.

Management fee income and performance fee income received from a
private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 0.75% to 1.375% per
annum of the NAV of the fund at the last working day of each month and
20% to 25% of the positive increment in the NAV for the years ended 31
December 2010 and 201 1.

Management fee income received from a public fund managed by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary were
charged at 1.5% per annum of the NAV of the fund at each valuation day
for the years ended 3| December 2010 and 201 1.

Commission income received from investment funds mentioned in notes
(vii) and (viii) above was based on a percentage stated in the respective
signed brokerage agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Group.

Commission income received from a public fund managed by the ultimate

holding company was charged at 0.25% of the transaction value.

Commission income received from key management personnel of the
Group was based on a percentage stated in the respective signed

brokerage agreement with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

B IS SRR M EE

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t-A

3% BEAIXS (B)

(a)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(%)

BARAZEMBAREERRAZNE
AERENLEECUBMNERERA
RERBWARBZ_Z-SFR_Z%
——F+ZA=t+-HIFERARE
—EIEENEEFESFILRAR
BEFEEMDN20%KE -

BMEVMLLEES RN AERE
BRSWA B HEN0.25%HHE) Rk
MBWA (RBMFEE - FRER
BITRT (BE)BRAAMBRNRER
MESmM3%) REMEFEERA -

BARRIZEMEBAREERRAENB
NERENLEESUDNERE KA
DEBEUABRBRE-ZT-TER-F
——&+-A=+-HILFEEARE
—EAIEANEEFESF0T5%E
1.375% A R B EFEE M 20%ZE
25% I & o

BAARZEMBARERERRAZNE
NRARENREESWHKEREBRA
BEBE-T-SFR-FT——F1+=R
ST-REFESHERNEREEF
EEF15%HE -

B b B & (vii) R (vili) T i 4% B E 2 U
BHASRARERAEES -2 8N
BRARABRIMEHERHANLE DL
WER o

BREFRAAEENAZES YT
REWRAER 5 EM0.25% K% -

BAKEIEEEABRRNAES KA
REABRKEEZ - 2EWBAREILN
BB BHMLE D LR -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

(continued)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

()

(xvi)

(xvii)

Included in the Group's accounts payable is a broker payable due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$19,461,000 (2010: HK$31,059,000) arising
from the dealing in securities as at 31 December 201 1. The balance is
unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the

relevant market practices.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable is a broker receivable due from
the ultimate holding company of HK$49,350,000 (2010: HK$50,155,000)
arising from the dealing in securities as at 31 December 201 1. The credit
terms provided to the ultimate holding company are consistent with the
practice of the securities dealing industry. The balance is unsecured, interest-

free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant market practices.

Included in the accounts receivable are management fee and performance
fee receivables due from investment funds managed by the Group and
invested by a fellow subsidiary of HK$818,000 (2010: HK$12,780,000)
arising from the provision of asset management services as at 31 December
201 1. The balances are unsecured, interest-free and receivable monthly in

arrears.

Included in the client trust bank balance is a deposit from key management
personnel of the Group of HK$54,000 (2010: HK$112,000) as at 31
December 201 1.

Included in the Group’s accounts payable are the accounts payable to
investment funds mentioned in notes (iii), (v), (vii), (viii) and (x) above
arising from dealing in securities in aggregate amounts of HK$52,530,000
(2010: HK$58,279,000) as at 31 December 201 1. The Group has a practice

to satisfy all requests for payment immediately within one business day.

Included in the Group's accounts receivable are the accounts receivable
from the private fund mentioned in note (v) above of HK$15,869,000 as at
31 December 2010.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i) to (vi) and (x)

above also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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3B BEAIXS (B)

@ (&)

(xi) AEEMEMSTERERZZ——F+
ZA=+- EEE%%%EmWﬁmﬂ
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35.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Detail of the remuneration of the key management personnel of the

Group are disclosed in note 32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of such risks which are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse

effect on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors
and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means
of reliable and up-to-date information. The Board of Directors provides written
principles for overall risk management. The Group regularly reviews its risk

management policies to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities comprise cash and short
term deposits maintained as working capital as well as held-to-maturity
investments and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as loans and advances to
customers and accounts receivable as well as accounts payable and bank

borrowings, which arise directly from its operations.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk,
market risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing each of these risks are

summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable from clients, brokers and dealers, corporate clients and
investment funds, held-to-maturity investments, bank balances and client trust

bank balances which are included in the Group’s asset portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Board of Directors delegates to the Credit Committee the duties to
monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members of the Credit Committee
include, inter alia, the Chief Executive Officer, Responsible Officers and the
Financial Controller. The Credit Committee has appointed a group of
authorised persons who are charged with the responsibility of approving credit
limit and margin limit for each client. The Credit and Risk Management
Department is responsible for making settlement calls when the trades of
margin clients exceed their respective limits. Any such excess is required to be
made good within 2 days according to the deficiency report. The deficiency
report will be daily monitored by the Director of Credit and Risk Management
Department. Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the

client's position.

The Credit Committee is also responsible for approval of securities acceptable
as margin collateral and the margin lending ratio. The list of approved stock
collateral securities will be reviewed and revised by the Credit Committee

when necessary.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain an element
of credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure by performing detailed
credit analysis of potential loan investment, and dedicated professionals are
assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of the loan investment.
These key investment decisions are also subject to approval by the Board of

Directors.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription of new
shares are normally settled within | week from the drawdown date. Forced
liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail to settle their shortfall

within specific period of tolerance after IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and Moody's
ratings or their equivalents are used by the Credit and Risk Management
Department for managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by the

Group's own assessment through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group’s bank balances are deposited in respectable, large commercial
banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held in segregated accounts,
they are deposited in authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit
risk of bank balances and client trust bank balances are considered to be

manageable.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients arising
from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-against payment
settlement term of 2 to 3 days. The Group allows credit up to the settlement
dates of the respective securities transactions (normally within T+2 or T+3
days). All applications for credit limits must be reviewed by Credit Manager and
approved by any member of the Credit Committee. However, no credit limit
would be granted to new clients. Credit and Risk Management Department
determines whether forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients with
overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The Credit Committee regularly

reviews the overdue balances.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group only accepts margin deposit in the form of cash for futures and
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking. No transaction is allowed to
execute if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The
margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposit of
each futures and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely monitored by
both the dealers and the Credit Risk Management Department. Margin calls
will be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures and leveraged foreign
exchange dealing and broking if there is a deficit with the margin deposit.
Forced liquidation of the client's position will be executed if the customer fails

to meet the margin calls.

With the above stated controls, management is confident that the credit risk
to the Group resulting from securities, futures and leveraged foreign exchange

broking and dealing as well as margin and other loan financing are manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large financial
institutions which are governed by regulators including the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (the "HKMA™) and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC"). The credit risk of accounts receivable from brokers

and dealers is considered to be manageable.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and investment
holding is manageable as the credit rating and reputation of trade

counterparties are sound.

Accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing houses and
other assets which are mainly deposits placed with the regulators are

considered to have minimal credit risk.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group's credit and risk management policy requires the review of
individual outstanding amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending
on individual circumstances or market condition. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the incurred
loss at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis, and are applied
to all individually significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.
Generally, impairment allowances will be provided when clients failed to meet
margin call requirements and clients’ collateral are insufficient to cover their

outstanding loan balances.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the reporting
period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the carrying amount of

those assets as indicated in the statement of financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to
the Group at 31 December 2010 and 2011, without taking account of any

collateral held or other credit enhancements attached.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@)

Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and majority of cash
and bank balances are located in Hong Kong. As the Group's bank
balances and client trust bank balances are deposited with a number of
financially sound financial institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the
concentration risk of the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank

balances is insignificant.

Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from clients

The counterparties of majority of loans and advances to customers
(including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan financing) and accounts
receivable from clients are individual and mainly located in China. The
Credit and Risk Management Department daily prepares key margin
client and future and leveraged foreign exchange client exposure for
review to avoid excessive concentration risk. As the Group trades with a
large number of diversified clients, in the opinion of the directors, the
concentration risk of loans and advances to customers and accounts

receivable from client is manageable.

Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing houses and

others

The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers from its securities, commodities and leveraged foreign
exchange broking and dealing as well as other receivables from asset
management, corporate finance and investment holdings. Responsible
Officers timely monitor excess deposit placed with dealers and brokers

to ensure the concentration risk of accounts receivable is manageable.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

The table below presents an analysis of held-to-maturity investments by rating

agency designation at 31 December, based on Moody’s ratings:
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BEIARE

TREFNERBE GIRRE) MFE -
Rt-A=t-BAERSEIHRED

1
2011 2010
—E2——-F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TET
Neither past due nor impaired: S EE I ERE
Ba2 Ba2 77,728 77,833

No impairment provision has been recognised for the held-to-maturity

investments as at 3| December 2011 (2010: Nil).

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest
rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market

rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed to interest rate
risk and price risk. The main market risks include cash flow interest rate risk
and price risk. The Group has established policies and procedures for
monitoring and controlling the market risk arising from these financial

instruments.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers, accounts receivable,
accounts payable to clients, bank borrowings, client trust bank balances, cash

and bank balances.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at variable rates
exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other financial assets and
liabilities are non interest bearing. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk by
monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest rates
offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse

effects of interest rate movements on net interest income.

The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible
interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable

and interest bearing bank deposits.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the interest rate by one
percentage point, with all other variables held constant, the profit before tax
for the year ended 31 December 201 | would have been increased/decreased
by approximately HK$86 million (2010: HK$83 million). The estimated one
percentage point increase or decrease represents management's assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until the next

annual reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity instruments
held by the Group which are classified on the statement of financial position as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk of
changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations, whether such
change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its
price risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investment and
dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance

of investment.

At 31 December 2011, the profit before tax would increase/decrease by
HK$6.1 million for the financial assets held for trading (2010: HK$8.9 million)
should the Hang Seng Index (the “HSI") increase/decrease by 10%.The analysis
is based on the assumption that all the equity instruments move according to
the historical correlation with the HSI and with all other variables held

constant.

The asset quality of the margin clients' margin collateral will also deteriorate
when the market comes down drastically. Scenario analysis and stress testing

are regularly performed on an individual client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign currency
exchange rate will affect the Group’s financial results and its cash flows. The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk as the majority of its operations and transactions are in Hong

Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

For leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking, stringent control over the
open position has been adopted. In the opinion of the directors, the foreign

exchange risk of the Group is minimal.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash, the
availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business, Finance Department maintains flexibility in funding by

maintaining available committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by the Finance Department to ensure

the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve
(comprising undrawn borrowing facility) and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance with statutory requirements.
This is achieved by monitoring the liquidity position of the individual company
within the Group on a daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid
funds to meet all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements

such as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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Notes to Financial Statements

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the maturity profiles of the Group and
Company’s financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash
flows, and financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to
provide a complete view of the Group and Company’s contractual

commitments and liquidity.

As at 3| December 201 |

B 7% 3R % Y &
31 December 2011
~F—F{ZA=1-A

36 cHEARER (&)

RBELEE (E)

REANRAMARERE  REME
EGRER(WER))  TEREEAKE
EARAEBAGBNIEER - M
AEERARRZENRNAERRD

R-ZE——&+-A=+-H

Group bie-3
Upto I-3 months 3-12 months Over  Indefinite'
Imonth  —%= ZE  |Syers  Syers BEEE Total
—-BAR R +=fA -Z&F BIF AR o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
T#r TEx TEx FEx TEx  TEx  TExn
Assets BE
Held-to-maturity investments REIETE — 2915 2915 83,558 — — 89,388
Loans and advances BYRPRER
to customers k&2 2,002,080 47,848 15,871 — — — 2,065,801
Accounts receivable ElmoE 335,179 681 506 — — — 336,366
Financial assets at fair value BOTE;AER
through profit or loss NeRAE - - 2798 62,845 — 90607 156,250
Other receivables ER e — 1,727 — — — = 1,727
Client trust bank balances REETRTER 5852138 277162 — — — — 6,129,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 433186 230,869 - - - — 664,055
8,622,585 561200 22090 146,403 — 90607 9442887
Liabilities =
Accounts payable ERTE (6:469,235)  (2,000) = — — —  (6471,35)
Other payables Eth R @17) - - (642) - — (919)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITEE —  (200,565) - - - —  (200,565)
(6,469,512)  (202,565) — (642) — —  (6672,719)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 36 cREARER (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) nEBELEE (E)
As at 3| December 2011 (continued) R-Z——F+=ZA=+—-H (&)
Company VNN
Up to 3-12 months Over  Indefinite'
[ month -3 months =ZF |5 years 5 years BRE Total
-BAR -2=A 1A -ZEIf AIF RARE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T&r FEx FTER  TER  TER  TER  TER
Assets &
Due from a subsidiary EUHEBARHE 1,756,397 — — - — — 1,756,397
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED 104 — - — — - 104
1,756,501 — — — — — 1,756,501

T OENEERREBETESOIBANK

Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date.

ZHE -
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-2+=ZH=+—-H
Group r5E
Upto I3 months 3-12 months Over  Indefinite!
| month —2= =2 [-5years Syears EEER Total
—fHAR #R +-@A -Z1F @1F ARY @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HK$000
TEr FAxr TExr  TExr FExr  TEr  TExn
Assets BE
Held-to-maturity investments REIHMRE — 2,886 2919 89,054 — — 9489
Loans and advances BYEFH
to customers ERRBF 1,975,894 — — — — — 1,975,894
Accounts receivable JEM A 904,138 30343 1102 935,583
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFANER
through profit or loss NEREE — - - - — 84099 84,099
Client trust bank balances XPERRITES 5650058 223,682 3007 5,876,747
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 396762 45094 — — — — 44185
8926852 302,005 7,028 89,054 — 84099 9,409,038
Liabilities 8%
Accounts payable ERHE (6,778940) — — — — —  (6778.940)
Other payables Bt TR (3267) — — — — — (3267)
(6,782,207 — — — — —  (6782207)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 36 SEEKREER (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBELER (E)
As at 31 December 2010 (continued) R-E-F+=-A=+-H
Company Y /N
Up to 3-12 months Over  Indefinite’
[ month  I-3 months =% |5 vears 5 years BRE Total

—AR —E=@A T-@EA -E5f ARF EARE st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEL TR TEAR  TART  TET  TEL  TER

Assets EE

Due from a subsidiary FEURHBARZE 1,750,135 — — — 1,750,135

Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN 101 — — — ]
1,750,236 — — — 1750236

! Indefinite represents equity investments with no contractual maturity date. ! BEREERAREET RSO SHANR

FRE -

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities CHEEREENLFE

Financial instruments not measured at fair value YHEAFEFENERMIA

At the end of the reporting period, the fair value of the Group's financial RS HRERE  NEEWFERRT

assets and liabilities not measured at fair value are not materially different from ErftENeREERBGBEN A TEER

their carrying amounts. REHBETEEAZE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair

value of financial instruments:

Level I fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which all
inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value

are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
any inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs)

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

As at 3| December 2011

Notes to Financial Statements
P E

31 December 2011

—e——Ft=A=t+-8

36 EREREE (&)
SHEEREENLATFE(B)

EATEIBNERIA (#)
R=g--Ft=A=t-A

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
FIR R FIR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAER TAER TAER THER
Financial assets at fair value AT ER AR
through profit or loss mHEREE 51,607 — 99,109 150,716
As at 3|1 December 2010 R-ZE-ZHE+-A=+—-H
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
IR FIHR F IR fEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Financial assets at fair value AT ER AR
through profit or loss mHEREE 84,099 — — 84,099

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between FN - FIRER2R 2 BHATEEL BE

Level | and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2010: nil).

TEMERER  MEIRLEEMEARE
HCE-2F:F) -

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of unlisted TREVBZE-_Z-ZSFR-E——F+ZA
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss for the years ~ =+ —BIFFEERAFEFABRHEIRIE

ended 31 December 2010 and 201 I.

ITTEREENES -

2011 2010

—E——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET
At | January R—H—H —

Purchases BE 65,505 —
Accrued interest income FEEHF B A 338
Net gain recognised in profit or loss RN R W= F 5 33,266
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 99,109
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which is a broader concept than

the “equity” on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

*  To comply with the capital requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules for its subsidiaries which are licensed

corporations;

*  To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders;
*  To support the Group's stability and growth; and

+  To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its

business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed subsidiary’s
management, based on the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
The required information is filed with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC
requires each licensed corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital
which is the higher of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.| million to
HK$3 million or 5% of the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients’
margin. All licensed corporations within the Group complied with their

required liquid capital during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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